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Income Tax 
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the Income Statement 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.  
 
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 
 
Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 
Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial 
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they probably 
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to 
the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the reporting date. 
 
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 
 
Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as the liability 
to pay the related dividend is recognised. 
 
Employee benefits 
Defined contribution plans 
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a 
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions 
to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods 
during which related services are rendered by employees. Pre-paid contributions are recognised as an asset to the 
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan 
that are made more than 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the service are 
discounted to their present value. 
 
Short-term benefits 
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related 
service is provided. 
 
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonuses or profit-sharing plans if 
the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by 
the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 
 
Foreign Currencies 
Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial 
statements are presented in Sterling, which is the Group’s presentation currency. This is also the functional currency 
of the Group and Company and is considered by the Board also to be appropriate for the purposes of preparing the 
Group financial statements.  
 
Transactions and balances  
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the 
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation at period end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  
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Group companies  
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary 
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the 
presentation currency as follows: 
 

 Monetary assets and liabilities for each Statement of Financial Position presented are presented at the closing 
rate at the date of that Statement of Financial Position. Non-monetary items are measured at the exchange 
rate in effect at the historical transaction date and are not translated at each Statement of Financial Position 
date; 

 Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average 
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in 
which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transaction): and 

 All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity. On consolidation, 
exchange differences arising from the translation of monetary items receivable from foreign subsidiaries for 
which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future are taken to shareholders 
equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement 
as part of the gain or loss on sale. 

 
Issue Expenses and Share Premium Account 
Issue expenses are written off against the premium arising on the issue of share capital. 
 
Lease payments 
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease. 
 
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction 
of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a 
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent lease payments are accounted 
for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment is 
confirmed. 
 
Finance income and expense 
Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, dividend income, gains on the disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets, and changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income 
is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised in profit 
or loss on the date that the group’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case of listed securities is the 
ex-dividend date.  
 
Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of discount on provisions, changes in the fair 
value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, impairment losses recognised on financial assets and losses 
on forward exchange contracts that are recognised in profit or loss. All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or 
loss using the effective interest method. 
 
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis. 
 
Earnings per Share 
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by 
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable 
to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all 
dilutive potential ordinary shares. 
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Financial Instruments 
Non-derivative financial assets 
The group initially recognises loans and receivables on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets 
(including assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the transaction date at 
which the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
The group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual right to the cash flows from the asset expires, or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets 
that are created or retained by the group is recognised as a separate asset or liability. 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, 
and only when, the group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
The group classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value, financial 
assets at amortised cost, or loans and receivables. 
 
Financial assets at amortised cost 
A financial asset is classified at amortised cost if the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specific 
dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding. Financial 
assets at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, these financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 
any impairment losses. 
 
Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables comprise instalment sale assets and trade and other receivables. Cash and cash equivalents 
comprise cash balances and call deposits with original maturities of three months or less. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form 
part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the 
statement of cash flows. 
 
Trade and other receivables / payables 
Trade and other receivables and payables are stated at cost less impairment, which approximates fair value given the 
short dated nature of these assets and liabilities. 
 
Non-derivative financial liabilities 
The group initially recognises debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they are originated. 
All other financial liabilities are recognised initially on the transaction date at which the group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
The group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. 
 
Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method.  
 
The group has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts, and trade and 
other payables. 
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Shareholder warrants 
The shareholder warrants entitle shareholders to a number of common shares based upon the number of shares they 
subscribed for at the date of issue of the warrant instrument. The warrants relate to a transaction with the equity 
holders as opposed to a transaction in exchange for any goods or services. The equity component of the instrument is 
not considered material and there is no liability component arising as a result of these warrants. Upon exercise of the 
warrant the proceeds received, net of attributable transaction costs, are credited to share capital and where 
appropriate share premium. 
 
Share based payments 
For such grants of share options qualifying as equity-settled share based payments, the fair value as at the date of 
grant is calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon 
which the options were granted. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of 
share options that are likely to vest, except where forfeiture is only due to market based conditions not achieving the 
threshold for vesting. 
 
Share capital 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognised directly in 
equity.  

Segment reporting 
The group determines and presents operating segments based on the information that is internally provided to the 
Executive Chairman, who is the chief operating decision maker. A segment is a distinguishable component of the group 
that is engaged either in providing related products or services (business segment), or in providing products or 
services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and returns that 
are different from those of the other segments. The group’s primary format for segment reporting is based on business 
segments. The business segments are determined based on the reporting business units. 
 
Treasury shares 
The Company’s own equity instruments that are reacquired are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain 
or loss is recognised in the Income Statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity 
instruments. Voting rights related to treasury shares are nullified for the Group and no dividends are allocated to 
them. 
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NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS  

Adoption of new and revised standards 
During the financial year, there were no new IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the first time, which 
have had a material impact on the group. 
 
The following pronouncements have been adopted in the year and either had no impact on the financial statements 
or resulted in changes to presentation and disclosure only: 
 

Standard Effective date, annual 
period beginning on or 
after * 

Annual Improvements 2010 – 2012 cycle 1 February 2015 
Annual Improvements 2011-2013 cycle 1 January 2015 
IAS 19 Employee Benefits 1 February 2015 

* This is the date from which these pronouncements became effective in the EU 
 
Standards issued but not yet effective: 
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations relevant to the 
Group and which have not been applied in these financial statements, were in issue but were not yet effective.  
 
In some cases these standards and guidance have not been endorsed for use in the European Union. 
 

Standard Effective date, annual 
period beginning on or 
after 

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 cycle 1 January 2016 
IFRS 11 (amendments) Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations 1 January 2016 
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral accounts 1 January 2016** 
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment entities – Applying the 
Consolidation Exception 

1 January 2016 

IAS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment and IAS 38 – Intangible assets (amendments) 1 January 2016 
IAS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment and IAS 41 – Bearer Plants (amendments) 1 January 2016 
IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016 
IAS 27 (amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements  1 January 2016 
Amendments to IAS 12 – Recognition of Deferred Tax for Unrealised Losses 1 January 2017 
Amendments to IAS 7 – Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017 
IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018 
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with Customers including amendments to IFRS 15: 
Effective date of IFRS 15. 

1 January 2018 

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 

 
**The European commission as decided not to launch the endorsement process of this interim standard but to wait 
for the final standard. 
 
Except for IFRS 15 and IFRS 9, the directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in 
future periods will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group. The potential impact of IFRS 15 
and IFRS 9 is currently being evaluated.  
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1. Segment analysis 
 
IFRS 8 requires an entity to report financial and descriptive information about its reportable segments, which are 
operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that meet specific criteria. Operating segments are 
components of an entity about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the 
chief operating decision maker. The Chief Executive Officer is the Chief Operating decision maker of the Group. 
 
Management currently identifies two divisions as operating segments – mining and corporate. These operating 
segments are monitored and strategic decisions are made based upon them together with other non-financial data 
collated from exploration activities. Principal activities for these operating segments are as follows: 
 

2015 Group Mining and 
Exploration Corporate 

31 December 
2015 (£) 

 Group Group Group 
Revenue 44,181 - 44,181 
Administrative cost - (1,791,358) (1,791,358) 
Exploration expenditure (1,454,216) - (1,454,216) 
Net reversal of impairment of assets 3,182,240 - 3,182,240 
Investment and other income 2,890 193,425 196,315 
Tax - - - 
Profit/ (Loss) after tax 1,775,095 (1,597,933) 177,162 

 
 
 
 

2014 Group Mining and 
Exploration Corporate 

31 December 
2014 (£) 

 Group Group Group 
Administrative cost - (1,500,757) (1,500,757) 
Exploration expenditure (1,073,022) - (1,073,022) 
Net reversal of impairment of assets 4,695,356 - 4,695,356 
Investment and other income 3,427 - 3,427  
Tax - - - 
Profit/ (Loss) after tax 3,625,761 (1,500,757) (2,125,004) 

 
 
 
 

2015 Group 
Mining Corporate 

31 December 
2015 (£) 

 Group Group Group 
Assets    
Segment assets 17,816,927 526,487 18,343,414 
    
Liabilities    
Segment liabilities 139,905 666,892 806,797 
    
Other Significant items    
Depreciation 21,685 - 21,685 
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2014 Group 
Mining Corporate 

31 December 
2014 (£) 

 Group Group Group 
Assets    
Segment assets 14,417,626 198,004 14,615,630 
    
Liabilities    
Segment liabilities - 240,106 240,106 
    
Other Significant items    
Depreciation 2,565 - 2,565 

 
 
Revenue from major products and services 
The only income that the Group received during the period related to bank interest, which has been allocated to 
Corporate. 
 
Geographical segments 
The Group operates in six principal geographical areas – Corporate [Ireland, Cyprus, South Africa, Canada & United 
Kingdom] and Mining [Tanzania]. 
 

 

Tanzania  

Ireland,  United 
Kingdom, South 

Africa, Cyprus and 
Canada 

31 
December 

2015 (£) 
 Group Group Group 
Major Operational indicators    
Carrying value of segmented assets  17,603,287 740,127 18,343,414 
Profit/(loss) after tax 1,807,453 (1,630,291) 177,162 

 
    
 

Tanzania 
Group   

Ireland,  United 
Kingdom, South 

Africa, Cyprus and 
Canada Group  

31 
December  

2014 (£) 
Major Operational indicators    
Carrying value of segmented assets  14,417,626 198,004 14,615,630 
Profit/(loss) after tax 3,811,986 (1,686,982) 2,125,004 

 
 
2. Revenue 
 

  31 
December 
2015 (£) 

31 
December 
2014 (£) 

Management fees from exploration services  41,181 - 
  41,181 - 

 
 Management fee revenue relates to services provided to exploration and prospecting companies situated in Tanzania. 
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3. Investment and other Income 
 

  31 
December 
2015 (£) 

31 
December 
2014 (£) 

Bargain purchase on acquisition of subsidiary  193,425 - 
Other income  2,890 3,427 
  196,315 3,427 

 
Investment and other income comprises interest on surplus cash reserves held during the current period on short 
term basis, as well as recoveries of exploration expenditure and exchange gains through currency fluctuations. 
 
The bargain purchase on acquisition of subsidiaries and profit on disposal of subsidiaries relate to the acquisition of 
the Mzuri Exploration Group of Companies (Kibo MXS Limited and Mzuri Exploration Services Limited). Refer to Note 
14 for further detail surrounding the Groups business combinations. 
 
4. Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 
 

Operating loss is stated after the following key transactions: 31 
December 

2015 (£) 
Group 

31 
December 

2014 (£) 
Group 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of Group financial statements 21,685 2,565 
Auditors’ remuneration for audit of Group and Company financial statements 35,000 35,000 
Impairment of goodwill on acquisition of Subsidiaries 20,057 - 
Loss on the disposal of subsidiaries 5,762 - 
Bargain purchase on acquisition of subsidiary 193,425 - 
Foreign currency (gains)/ losses from trading activities 31,726 (2,979) 
Net reversal of impairment of intangible assets  (3,182,240) (4,695,356) 

 
5. Staff costs (including Directors) 

 
Group  

31 December 
2015 (£) 

Group  
31 December  

2014 (£) 

Company  
31 December 

2015 (£) 

Company  
31 December  

2014 (£) 
Wages and salaries  809,223 305,844 378,020 167,639 
Share based remuneration 547,277 155,725 400,868 155,725 
 1,356,500 461,569 778,888 323,364 

 
The average monthly number of employees (including executive Directors) during the period was as follows: 
 

 Group  
31 

December 
2015 (£) 

Group  
31 

December  
2014 (£) 

Company  
31 

December 
2015 (£) 

Company  
31 December  

2014 (£) 
Exploration activities 10 10 1 1 
Administration 6 6 1 1 
 16 16 2 2 

 
6. Directors’ emoluments 
 

 Group  
31 

December 
2015 (£) 

Group  
31 

December  
2014 (£) 

Company  
31 

December 
2015 (£) 

Company  
31 December  

2014 (£) 
Basic salary and fees  375,295 248,588 267,347 167,639 
Share based payments 329,438 127,371 329,437 127,371 
 704,733 375,959 596,784 295,010 
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The emoluments of the Chairman were £44,743 (2014: £5,804). 
The emoluments of the highest paid director were £235,384 (2014: £164,444). 
 
Key management personnel consist only of the Directors. Details of share options and interests in the Company’s 
shares of each director are shown in the Directors’ report on page 8. The following table summarises the remuneration 
applicable to each of the individuals who held office as a director during the reporting period: 

31 December 2015 

 

Salary and 
fees 

£ 

      
Share 
based 

payments 
£ 

     Total 
£ 

Christian Schaffalitzky  8,743 36,000 44,743 
Louis Coetzee  156,810 78,574 235,384 
Noel O’Keeffe  108,544 71,431 179,975 
Lukas Maree  9,166 36,000 45,166 
Wenzel Kerremans  9,015 36,000 45,015 
Andreas Lianos  83,017 71,432 154,449 
Total  375,295 329,438 704,733 

 

31 December 2014 

 

Salary and 
fees 

£ 

      
Share 
based 

payments 
£ 

     Total 
£ 

Christian Schaffalitzky  3,442 2,362 5,804 
Louis Coetzee  124,275 40,169 164,444 
Noel O’Keeffe  80,949 26,094 107,044 
Lukas Maree  3,442 2,362 5,804 
Wenzel Kerremans  3,442 2,362 5,804 
Andreas Lianos  33,038 54,021 87,059 
Total  248,588 127,371 375,959 

 
 
7. Taxation 
 
Current tax 

  31 December 
2015 (£) 

31 December 
2014 (£) 

Charge for the period in Ireland, Canada, Republic of South Africa, 
Cyprus, United Kingdom and Republic of Tanzania 

 - - 

Total tax charge  - - 
 

The difference between the total current tax shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate 
of Irish corporation tax of 12.5% to the loss before tax is as follows: 

 
 2015 (£) 2014 (£) 
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 177,162 2,125,004 
   
Income tax expense calculated at 12.5% (2014: 12.5%) 22,145 265,526 
   
Income which is not taxable (610,576) (586,920) 
Expenses which are not deductible 201,508 - 
Losses available for carry forward 386,923 321,394 
Income tax expense recognised in the Statement Of Comprehensive Income - - 
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The emoluments of the Chairman were £44,743 (2014: £5,804). 
The emoluments of the highest paid director were £235,384 (2014: £164,444). 
 
Key management personnel consist only of the Directors. Details of share options and interests in the Company’s 
shares of each director are shown in the Directors’ report on page 8. The following table summarises the remuneration 
applicable to each of the individuals who held office as a director during the reporting period: 

31 December 2015 

 

Salary and 
fees 

£ 

      
Share 
based 

payments 
£ 

     Total 
£ 

Christian Schaffalitzky  8,743 36,000 44,743 
Louis Coetzee  156,810 78,574 235,384 
Noel O’Keeffe  108,544 71,431 179,975 
Lukas Maree  9,166 36,000 45,166 
Wenzel Kerremans  9,015 36,000 45,015 
Andreas Lianos  83,017 71,432 154,449 
Total  375,295 329,438 704,733 

 

31 December 2014 

 

Salary and 
fees 

£ 

      
Share 
based 

payments 
£ 

     Total 
£ 

Christian Schaffalitzky  3,442 2,362 5,804 
Louis Coetzee  124,275 40,169 164,444 
Noel O’Keeffe  80,949 26,094 107,044 
Lukas Maree  3,442 2,362 5,804 
Wenzel Kerremans  3,442 2,362 5,804 
Andreas Lianos  33,038 54,021 87,059 
Total  248,588 127,371 375,959 
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The effective tax rate used for the December 2015 and December 2014 reconciliations above is the corporate rate of 
12.5% payable by corporate entities in Ireland on taxable profits under tax law in that jurisdiction. 
 
No provision has been made for the 2015 deferred taxation as no taxable income has been received to date, and the 
probability of future taxable income is indicative of current market conditions which remain uncertain. At the 
Statement of Financial Position date, the Directors estimate that the Group has unused tax losses of £16,163,168 
(2014: £13,067,784) available for offset against future profits which equates to an estimated potential deferred tax 
asset of £2,020,396 (2014: £1,633,473). No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of the 
future profit streams. Losses may be carried forward indefinitely in accordance with the applicable taxation 
regulations ruling within each of the above jurisdictions. 
 
8. Loss of parent Company 
 
As permitted by Section 293 of the Companies Act 2014, the statement of comprehensive income of the parent 
Company has not been separately disclosed in these financial statements. The parent Company’s loss for the financial 
period was £1,482,910 (2014: £1,343,195). 
 
9. Earnings per share 
 
Basic earnings per share 
The basic earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used for calculation purposes comprise the 
following: 
 

  31 December 
2015 (£) 

31 December 
2014 (£) 

Earnings for the period attributable to equity holders of 
the parent 

 177,162 2,125,004 

    
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the 
purposes of basic earnings per share 

 316,986,334 193,400,160 

    
Basic earnings per ordinary share  0.001 0.01 

 
Diluted earnings per share 
As the exercise price of the share options and warrants in issue during the period from issue to the reporting date was 
higher than the market value as at reporting date, these option and warrants do not have a dilutive impact. Thus there 
are no dilutive share options or warrants in issue as at year end which decreased the basic earnings/ (loss) per share 
as indicated above. 

    
Diluted earnings per ordinary share             0.001   0.01 
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10.  Property, plant and equipment 

GROUP 
     Furniture 

and Fittings 
Motor 

Vehicles 
Office 

Equipment 
I.T 

Equipment 
Plant & 

Machinery 
Total 

Cost    (£) (£) (£) (£) (£) (£) 

Opening Cost as at 1 January 2014    1,867 7,277 3,190 2,586 7,121 22,041 
          
Additions    - - - - - - 
Disposals    - - - - - - 
Exchange movements    116 448 456 (99) 438 1,359 
          
Closing Cost as at 31 December 2014    1,983 7,725 3,646 2,487 7,559 23,400 
          
Additions through business combinations    98,438 69,305 16,957 12,965 102 197,767 
Disposals of subsidiaries    - - - - (3,165) (3,165) 
Exchange movements    95 369 175 118 210 967 
          
Closing Cost as at 31 December 2015    100,516 77,399 20,778 15,570 4,706 218,969 
          

   Furniture 
and Fittings 

Motor 
Vehicles 

Office 
Equipment 

I.T 
Equipment 

Plant & 
Machinery 

Total 

Accumulated Depreciation (“Acc Depr”)    (£) (£) (£) (£) (£) (£) 

Acc Depr as at 1 January 2014    944 6,428 1,738 1,804 4,801 15,715 
         
Disposals   - - - - - - 
Depreciation   248 901 729 592 484 2,954 
Exchange movements   58 396 129 91 296 970 
         
Acc Depr as at 31 December 2014   1,250 7,725 2,596 2,487 5,581 19,639 
         
Additions through business combinations   77,118 66,101 15,676 11,123 76 170,094 
Disposals of subsidiaries   - - - - (1,187) (1,187) 
Depreciation   14,795 3,107 1,984 1,786 13 21,685 
Exchange movements   520 466 185 174 211 1,556 
         
Acc Depr as at 31 December 2015   93,683 77,399 20,441 15,570 4,694 211,787 

    
 

     

   Furniture 
and Fittings 

Motor 
Vehicles 

Office 
Equipment 

I.T 
Equipment 

Plant & 
Machinery 

Total 

Carrying Value   (£) (£) (£) (£) (£) (£) 

Carrying value as at 31 December 2014   733 - 1,050 - 1,978 3,761 
Carrying value as at 31 December 2015   6,833 - 336 - 13 7,182 
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11. Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets consist solely of separately identifiable prospecting assets identified through business combinations, 
where these separately identifiable intangible assets will be recognised at fair value on acquisition date of said 
subsidiary. 
 
The following reconciliation serves to summarise the composition of intangible prospecting assets as at period end: 
 

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets      
 Pinewood 

Project 
(£) 

Mbeya Coal 
Project (£) 

Lake 
Victoria 
Project 

(£) 

Haneti 
Project (£) 

Total (£) 

Valuation as at 1 January 2014 430,000 4,560,000 1,700,000 3,028,509 9,718,509 
Impairment of prospecting licences (430,000) - - (3,028,509) (3,458,509) 
Reversal of impairment of licences - 8,153,865 - - 8,153,865 
Carrying value as at 1 January 2015 - 12,713,865 1,700,000 - 14,413,865 
Impairment of prospecting licences - - - - - 
Reversal of impairment of licences - 3,182,240 - - 3,182,240 
Carrying value as at 31 December 2015 - 15,896,105 1,700,000 - 17,596,105 

 
Intangible assets are not amortised, due to the indefinite useful life which is attached to the underlying prospecting 
rights, until such time that active mining operations commence, which will result in the intangible asset being 
amortised over the useful life of the relevant mining licences. 
 
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are assessed for indications of impairment on an annual basis and also 
when there is an indication of impairment, against the prospective fair value of the intangible asset. The valuation of 
intangible assets with an indefinite useful life is reassessed on an annual basis through valuation techniques 
applicable to the nature of the intangible assets. 
 
In assessing whether a write-down is required in the carrying value of a potentially impaired intangible asset, the 
asset’s carrying value is compared with its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s 
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The valuation techniques applicable to the valuation of the 
abovementioned intangible assets comprise a combination of fair market values, discounted cash flow projections 
and historic transaction prices. 
 
The following key assumptions influence the measurement of the intangible assets recoverable amounts, through 
utilising the value in use method in order to determine the recoverable amount: 
 

 Comparable market value of similar mineral statements; 
 Currency fluctuations and exchange movements; 
 Expected growth rates; 
 Cost of capital related to funding requirements; 
 Applicable discounts rates; 
 Future operating expenditure for extraction and mining of measured mineral resources; and 
 Co-operation of key project partners going forward. 

 
Through review of the project specific financial, operational, market and economic indicators applicable to the above 
intangible assets, impairment indicators were identified which required impairment of the intangible assets and 
reversal of impairments recognised in respect of selective exploration projects. 
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Reversal of impairment 
 
Mbeya Coal Project 
Based on an integration of all feasibility study reports available to the end of the third quarter 2015, Kibo announced 
the results of a financial optimisation study on the mining component of the MCPP in October 2015. This work was 
completed in collaboration with its appointed mining DFS consultant Minxcon Projects.  The following key 
assumptions influence the measurement of the intangible assets recoverable amounts, through utilising the value is 
use method in order to determine the recoverable amount: 

 NPV of £15.8 million at 15-20% discount rate; 
 Mbeya has an all – in cost margin of between 47.9% to 48.1% that is high compared to other coal mines;  
 A capital investment of USD89 million is required to fund the operation subject to the option investigated;  
 The life of the project is estimated to be 27 years based on the most feasible model; 
 The information utilised for valuation of the project was based on independent Competent Persons Reports 

prepared specifically for the project by independent organisations to the Group; and 
 The payback period for the Project is 2.6 and 3.65 years.  

 
The previous impairment performed was based on resource estimations and not on the net present value 
determination as these became available from the latest Competent Persons Reports prepared during the current 
financial period. Based on the updated results of the study, management has re-assessed the related intangible asset 
which indicated a reversal of the last available previously recognised impairment amounting to £3,182,240. 
 
Impairment review of Lake Victoria 
 
The Company’s near-term plans on its Lake Victoria projects will be primarily focused on follow up work at Imweru 
where further work is on-going. A recent optimisation study by the Company, which had been validated by its 
independent consultants, has established the potential viability of the existing Imweru Minera Resource to support 
an economic mining operation.  
 
As at 31 December 2015 management continues to take the assumption that the Lake Victoria project associated with 
Nickel and Gold prospecting should be valued utilising the value in use method similarly to the previous financial 
period as no significant additional exploration or prospecting has occurred which may result in a revised valuation of 
the project. 
 
Impairment processed in the previous financial period 
 
In 2014, the Directors’ impairment assessment resulted in impairments to intangible assets as set out below. 
 
Haneti Project 
 
Due to the continued focus on the advanced coal and gold developments and resulting delay in the field exploration 
work related to the Haneti project, management has for financial reporting purposes reassessed the value in use of 
the Haneti project in line with the requirements of the financial reporting framework. The result indicated a 
downward adjustment in order to reflect the current resource listings, not taking into account the prospective value 
management attaches to the Haneti. Based on management’s assessment of the related intangible asset indicated an 
impairment amounting to £3,028,509 in the comparative financial period. 
 
Pinewood Project 
 
Due to the continued focus on the advanced coal and gold developments and resulting delay in the field exploration 
work related to the Pinewood project, management has relinquished a number of the uranium and coal licences in 
the prior and current period in order to focus on the most favourable areas. For financial reporting purposes 
management has reassessed the value in use of the Pinewood project in line with the requirements of the financial 
reporting framework. The result indicated a downward adjustment as the value in use indicators suggest there to be 
limited value encased within the Pinewood project as it currently stands. Based on management’s assessment of the 
related intangible asset indicated an impairment amounting to £430,000 in the comparative financial period.
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12. Business Combinations 
 
On 1 January 2015 the Group acquired the entire shareholders interest in Kibo MXS Limited and Mzuri Exploration 
Services Limited for cash consideration equal to £450 of the ordinary shares in issue, assuming all assets and liabilities 
fairly valued.  A bargain purchase amounting to £193,425 was recognised relating to the acquisition of  
Mzuri Exploration Services Limited recognised in profit/loss in the current period. 
 
The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed relating to the above business combinations is subject to 
change should additional information become available within the 12 month re-measurement period from date of 
acquisition. 
 
The following table provides detail relating to the net cash flows from acquisitions of Mzuri Exploration Services 
Limited: 
 

 
 

 Group 

  2015 (£) 
   
Property, plant and equipment  27,673 
Current taxation receivable  3,963 
Trade and other receivables  184,787 
Cash and cash equivalents  61,492 
Trade and other payables  (84,490) 
  193,425 

 
13. Trade and other receivables 
 

 Group 
2015 (£) 

Group  
2014 (£) 

Company  
2015 (£) 

Company  
2014 (£) 

     
Amounts falling due over one year:     
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 27,712,269 26,047,465 
     
Amounts falling due within one year:     
Other debtors 550,692 11,557 523,104 659 
 550,692 11,557 28,235,373 26,048,124 

 
The other debtors receivable for Group and Company includes £522,800 receivable from Hume Capital Securities Plc 
which was placed under administrative care before the monies could be transferred to the Company. 
 
The nature of amounts owed by Group undertakings is such that the expected recovery thereof is in excess of one 
year, and is thus classified as amounts falling due after one year. 
 
The carrying value of current trade and other receivables equals their fair value due mainly to the short term nature 
of these receivables. 
 
Amounts owed by group undertakings represent inter-company loans between the Company and its subsidiaries, they 
have no fixed repayment terms, bear no interest and are unsecured, resulting in the recognition of the receivable as a 
non-current asset due settlement being extended beyond 12 months as there are no fixed repayment terms. 
 
Trade and other receivables pledged as security 
 
None of the above stated trade and other receivables were pledged as security at period end. Credit quality of trade 
and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to historical repayment 
trends of the individual debtors.
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14. Cash and Cash equivalents 
  Group (£) Company (£) 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:  2015 2014 2015 2014 
      
Short term convertible cash reserves  189,435 186,447 3,383 79,575 
  189,435 186,447 3,383 79,575 

 
Cash and cash equivalents have not been ceded, or placed as encumbrance toward any liabilities as at year end. 
 
15. Share capital - Group and Company 
 

  2015 2014 
Authorised equity    
800,000,000 Ordinary shares of €0.015 each  
(2014: 400,000,000 Ordinary shares of €0.015 each) 
3,000,000,000 deferred shares of €0.009 each 

 €12,000,000 
 

€27,000,000 

€6,000,000 
 

€27,000,000 
  €39,000,000 €33,000,000 
    
Allotted, issued and fully paid shares    
(2015: 330,928,714 Ordinary shares of €0.015 each)  £3,953,213 - 
(2014: 274,238,757 Ordinary shares of €0.015 each)  - £3,334,675 
1,291,394,535 Deferred shares of €0.009 each  £9,257,075 £9,257,075 
  £13,210,288 £12,591,750 

 

 Number of 
Shares 

Ordinary 
Share 

Capital 
(£)* 

Deferred 
Share 

Capital 
(£) 

Share 
Premium 

(£) 

Treasury 
shares 

(£) 
      
      
Balance at 30 December 2014 274,238,757 12,591,750 9,257,075 23,903,307 - 
      
Shares issued during the period 56,689,957 618,538 - 1,879,212 (44,464) 
      
Balance at 31 December 2015 330,928,714 13,210,288 9,257,075 25,782,519 (44,464) 

 Co 
All ordinary shares issued have the right to vote, right to receive dividends, a copy of the annual report, and the right 
to transfer ownership of their shares. 
 
The Deferred Shares will not entitle holders to receive notice of, or attend or vote at any general meeting of the 
Company or to receive a dividend or other distribution or to participate in any return on capital on a winding up other 
than the nominal amount paid following a substantial distribution to the holders of the Ordinary Shares in the 
Company. Accordingly, for all practical purposes the Deferred Shares will be valueless, and it is the board’s intention 
at the appropriate time, to purchase the Deferred Shares at an aggregate consideration of €1. 
 
*Included in the ordinary share capital are the treasury shares relating to 4,090,000 ordinary shares placed during 
February 2015 with Hume Capital Securities plc ("Hume Capital") where Hume Capital was subsequently placed 
under administration before the monies were received.  A administrator was appointed in order  to administer the 
distribution of outstanding monies receivable and shares subscribed to with Hume Capital. As the allotment of 
4,090,000 was never completed, these shares should be considered cancelled shares, however as the at the reporting 
date these shares have not yet been cancelled and as such remain issued as per the share register. 
ted Financial 
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date these shares have not yet been cancelled and as such remain issued as per the share register. 
ted Financial 
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16. Share based payments reserve 
 
The following reconciliation serves to summarise the composition of the share based payment reserve as at period 
end: 
 

  Group (£) 
  2015 2014 
Opening balance of share based payment reserve  510,978 977,543 
Issue of share options and warrants  514,279 - 
Reclassification of share based payment reserve on expired share options  (510,978) (466,565) 
  514,279 510,978 

 
  Company (£) 
  2015 2014 
Opening balance of share based payment reserve  510,978 510,978 
Issue of share options and warrants  514,279 - 
Reclassification of share based payment reserve on expired share options  (510,978)  
  514,279 510,978 

Costs associated with options issued as stated above. 
 
The Group recognised the following expense related to equity settled share based payment transactions: 
 

  2015 (£) 2014 (£) 
    
Fair value of share options issued  514,279 - 
Non-executive Directors emoluments settled  33,000 - 
Geological expenditure settled  19,454 - 
  566,733 - 
    

The Company recognised the following expense related to equity settled share based payment transactions: 
 

  2015 (£) 2014 (£) 
    
Fair value of share options issued  296,437 - 
Non-executive Directors emoluments settled  33,000 - 
  329,437 - 
    

At 31 December 2015 the Company had 14,399,331 options and 10,000,000 warrants outstanding detailed below: 
 

 Date of 
Grant 

Exercise 
start date 

Expiry 
date 

Exercise 
Price 

Number 
Granted 

Exercisable 
as at 31 

December 
2015 

Options       
       
 02 Jun 15 02 Jun 15 1 Jun 18 5p 14,399,333 14,399,333 
Total     14,399,333 14,399,333 
       
Warrants       
 20 Feb 15 20 Feb 15 20 Feb 18 9p 10,000,000 10,000,000 
Total     10,000,000 10,000,000 
       
       
Total Contingently Issuable shares  24,399,333 24,399,333 



KIBO MINING PLC ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 

44 
 

Reconciliation of the quantity of share options in issue: 
 

  Group Company 
  2015 2014 2015 2014 
Opening balance  1,195,945 4,945,945 1,195,945 1,195,945 
Issue of share options   14,399,333 - 14,399,333 - 
Expiration of share options   (1,196,945) (3,750,000) (1,196,945) - 
  14,399,333 1,195,945 14,399,333 1,195,945 

 
Reconciliation of the quantity of warrants in issue: 
 

  Group Company 
  2015 2014 2015 2014 
Opening balance   110,950 110,950 110,950 110,950 
Warrants issued  20,000,000 - 20,000,000 - 
Warrants exercised  (10,000,000) - (10,000,000) - 
Warrants lapsed  (110,950) - (110,950) - 
  10,000,000 110,950 10,000,000 110,950 

 
Weighted average remaining contractual life of warrants is 2 years, and options are 2.5 years. The average share price 
during the year was £0.039. The weighted average exercise price of the options and warrants outstanding at year end 
was £0.029 and £0.0906 respectively. 
 
Options issued during the current financial period were valued using the following inputs to the Black-Scholes model: 
 

    Kibo Mining Plc 
Share price when options issued    4.88 
Expected volatility    127.37% 
Expected life    3 years 
Risk free rate    0.72% 
Expected dividends    - 

 
The fair value of the share-based payment is based upon the Black-Scholes formula, a commonly used option pricing 
model.  The calculation of volatility used in the model is based upon an average of market prices against current 
market prices of listed companies operating in the mining industry. 
 
The 10,000,0000 warrants exercisable at £0.09 and 14,399,333 options exercisable at £0.05 outstanding as at year 
end were issued as incentive to joint-venture partners and employees respectively in order to retain fruitful continued 
financial relationships with these stakeholders respectively. No fair value was allocated to the 10,000,000 warrants 
in issue at year end as the Directors considered that no services were received in exchange for the issue of warrants. 
 
17. Translation reserves 
 
The foreign exchange reserve relates to the foreign exchange effect of the retranslation of the Group’s overseas 
subsidiaries on consolidation into the Group’s financial statements. 
 

 Group Company 
 2015 (£) 2014 (£) 2015 (£) 2014 (£) 
Opening balance  (400,985) (594,535) 39,321 27,762 
Movement during the period 16,366 193,550 13,178 11,559 
Closing balance of foreign currency translation reserve (384,619) (400,985) 52,499 39,321 
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Weighted average remaining contractual life of warrants is 2 years, and options are 2.5 years. The average share price 
during the year was £0.039. The weighted average exercise price of the options and warrants outstanding at year end 
was £0.029 and £0.0906 respectively. 
 
Options issued during the current financial period were valued using the following inputs to the Black-Scholes model: 
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Share price when options issued    4.88 
Expected volatility    127.37% 
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Risk free rate    0.72% 
Expected dividends    - 

 
The fair value of the share-based payment is based upon the Black-Scholes formula, a commonly used option pricing 
model.  The calculation of volatility used in the model is based upon an average of market prices against current 
market prices of listed companies operating in the mining industry. 
 
The 10,000,0000 warrants exercisable at £0.09 and 14,399,333 options exercisable at £0.05 outstanding as at year 
end were issued as incentive to joint-venture partners and employees respectively in order to retain fruitful continued 
financial relationships with these stakeholders respectively. No fair value was allocated to the 10,000,000 warrants 
in issue at year end as the Directors considered that no services were received in exchange for the issue of warrants. 
 
17. Translation reserves 
 
The foreign exchange reserve relates to the foreign exchange effect of the retranslation of the Group’s overseas 
subsidiaries on consolidation into the Group’s financial statements. 
 

 Group Company 
 2015 (£) 2014 (£) 2015 (£) 2014 (£) 
Opening balance  (400,985) (594,535) 39,321 27,762 
Movement during the period 16,366 193,550 13,178 11,559 
Closing balance of foreign currency translation reserve (384,619) (400,985) 52,499 39,321 
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18. Trade and other payables 
 

 Group 
2015 (£) 

Group 
2014 (£) 

Company 
2015 (£) 

Company 
2014 (£) 

Amounts falling due within one year:     
Trade payables 306,797 240,106 166,892 53,668 
     
 306,797 240,106 166,892 53,668 

 
The carrying value of current trade and other receivables equals their fair value due mainly to the short term nature 
of these receivables. 
 
19. Borrowings 
 

 Group 
2015 (£) 

Group 
2014 (£) 

Company 
2015 (£) 

Company 
2014 (£) 

Amounts falling due within one year:     
Short term loans 500,000 - 500,000 - 
     
 500,000 - 500,000 - 

 

The borrowings relate to the unsecured interest free loan facility from Sanderson Capital Partners Limited  which is 
repayable no later than 3 February 2016.  An arrangement fee of £150,000 was payable upon entering into the loan 
facility, of which £100,000 was settled in shares on 12 November 2015, and the remaining £50,000 was accrued as at 
year end.
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20. Investment in group undertakings 
 

   Subsidiary 
undertakings 

(£) 
Investments at Cost    
At 1 January 2014   1,700,000 
    
Additions   - 
Disposals   - 
    
At 31 December 2014 (£)*   1,700,000 
    
Additions   - 
Disposals   - 
    
At 31 December 2015 (£)   1,700,000 

* The above investment in subsidiaries comprises the carrying value of the investments in Kibo Mining (Cyprus) 
Limited and Sloane Developments Limited to the value of £1,700,000, and £- respectively. 

At 31 December 2015 the Company had the following undertakings: 

Description 

Subsidiary, 
associate or 

Joint 
Venture Activity 

Incorporated 
in  

Interest 
held 

(2015) 

Interest 
held 

(2014) 
Directly held subsidiaries      
Sloane Developments Limited Subsidiary Holding Company United 

Kingdom 
100% 100% 

Kibo Mining (Cyprus) Limited Subsidiary Treasury Function Cyprus 100% 100% 
      
Indirectly held subsidiaries      
Kibo Gold Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 100% 
Savannah Mining Limited Subsidiary Mineral Exploration Tanzania 100% 100% 
Reef Miners Limited Subsidiary Mineral Exploration Tanzania 100% 100% 
Kibo Nickel Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 100% 
Eagle Gold Mining Limited Subsidiary Mineral Exploration Tanzania 100% 100% 
Mzuri Energy Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Canada 100% 100% 
Mbeya Holdings Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 100% 
Rukwa Development Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 100% 
Rukwa Mining Company Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 100% 
Rukwa Coal Limited Subsidiary Mineral Exploration Tanzania 100% 100% 
Mzuri Power Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 100% 
Mbeya Power Tanzania Limited Subsidiary Power Generation Tanzania 100% 100% 
Kibo Mining South Africa (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Treasury Function South Africa 100% 100% 
Kibo Exploration (Tanzania) 
Limited 

Subsidiary Treasury Function Tanzania 100% 100% 

Kibo MXS Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 0% 
Tourlou Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 0% 
Mzuri Exploration Services 
Limited 

Subsidiary Exploration Services Tanzania 100% 0% 

      
Other interests held      
Jubilee Resources Limited Joint Venture Mineral Exploration Tanzania 50% 100% 
Kibo Jubilee (Cyprus) Limited Joint Venture Holding Company Cyprus 50% 0% 
Kibo Uranium Limited Joint Venture Mineral Exploration Cyprus 50% 100% 
Pinewood Resources Limited Joint Venture Mineral Exploration Tanzania 50% 100% 
Makambako Resources Limited Joint Venture Mineral Exploration Tanzania 50% 100% 
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20. Investment in group undertakings 
 

   Subsidiary 
undertakings 

(£) 
Investments at Cost    
At 1 January 2014   1,700,000 
    
Additions   - 
Disposals   - 
    
At 31 December 2014 (£)*   1,700,000 
    
Additions   - 
Disposals   - 
    
At 31 December 2015 (£)   1,700,000 

* The above investment in subsidiaries comprises the carrying value of the investments in Kibo Mining (Cyprus) 
Limited and Sloane Developments Limited to the value of £1,700,000, and £- respectively. 

At 31 December 2015 the Company had the following undertakings: 

Description 

Subsidiary, 
associate or 

Joint 
Venture Activity 

Incorporated 
in  

Interest 
held 

(2015) 

Interest 
held 

(2014) 
Directly held subsidiaries      
Sloane Developments Limited Subsidiary Holding Company United 

Kingdom 
100% 100% 

Kibo Mining (Cyprus) Limited Subsidiary Treasury Function Cyprus 100% 100% 
      
Indirectly held subsidiaries      
Kibo Gold Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 100% 
Savannah Mining Limited Subsidiary Mineral Exploration Tanzania 100% 100% 
Reef Miners Limited Subsidiary Mineral Exploration Tanzania 100% 100% 
Kibo Nickel Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 100% 
Eagle Gold Mining Limited Subsidiary Mineral Exploration Tanzania 100% 100% 
Mzuri Energy Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Canada 100% 100% 
Mbeya Holdings Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 100% 
Rukwa Development Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 100% 
Rukwa Mining Company Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 100% 
Rukwa Coal Limited Subsidiary Mineral Exploration Tanzania 100% 100% 
Mzuri Power Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 100% 
Mbeya Power Tanzania Limited Subsidiary Power Generation Tanzania 100% 100% 
Kibo Mining South Africa (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Treasury Function South Africa 100% 100% 
Kibo Exploration (Tanzania) 
Limited 

Subsidiary Treasury Function Tanzania 100% 100% 

Kibo MXS Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 0% 
Tourlou Limited Subsidiary Holding Company Cyprus 100% 0% 
Mzuri Exploration Services 
Limited 

Subsidiary Exploration Services Tanzania 100% 0% 

      
Other interests held      
Jubilee Resources Limited Joint Venture Mineral Exploration Tanzania 50% 100% 
Kibo Jubilee (Cyprus) Limited Joint Venture Holding Company Cyprus 50% 0% 
Kibo Uranium Limited Joint Venture Mineral Exploration Cyprus 50% 100% 
Pinewood Resources Limited Joint Venture Mineral Exploration Tanzania 50% 100% 
Makambako Resources Limited Joint Venture Mineral Exploration Tanzania 50% 100% 
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The value of the investments is dependent on the discovery and successful development of evaluation and exploration 
assets. Should the development of the evaluation and exploration assets prove unsuccessful, the carrying value in the 
statement of financial position will be written off. In the opinion of the Directors’ the carrying value of the investments 
is appropriate. 
 
During the current financial period, the Company entered into Joint Ventures with Metal Tiger Plc specific to the 
Uranium and Morogoro assets, where 50% of the ordinary share capital of the Kibo Uranium Group (Kibo Uranium 
Limited, Pinewood Resources Limited and Makambako Resources Limited) and Kibo Jubilee Group (Kibo Jubilee 
(Cyprus) Limited and Jubilee Resources Limited) would be disposed of at nominal value, and in turn Metal Tiger would 
expense US$800,000 over a period of 3 years for each project.  A minimum expenditure of US$300,000 but less than 
US$800,000 would see Metal Tiger’s interest in a project revert to a 10% free carried interest, while any expenditure 
by Metal Tiger less than US$300,000 would see Kibo regain a 100% interest in the project. During the 2015 financial 
period Metal Tiger contributed US$37,665 toward the Morogoro asset and an additional US$37,697 toward the 
Uranium project which are below the US$100,000 thresholds respectively. The Groups equitable portion of the 
current period losses from the Morogoro and Uranium projects relating to the Joint Venture operations are £18,000 
and £26,400 respectively. 
 
The entire interest in the Kibo Uranium Group and Kibo Jubilee Group was disposed of with effect from 1 January 
2015 onward, resulting in the recognition of a profit on disposal of these subsidiaries amounting to £5,762. 
 
The aggregate pre-consolidation capital and reserves and results of the subsidiary undertakings for the last relevant 
financial period were as follows: 
 

Group – 2015 Financial Period  Net Asset 
Value/ (Net 

Liability 
Value)  

(£) 

Profit/(loss) 
for the 

period (£) 

Sloane Developments Limited  (3,696) (3,189) 
Kibo Mining (Cyprus) Limited  (24,077,092) (2,091,436) 
Kibo Gold Limited  131,996 (2,931) 
Savannah Mining Limited  (724,355) (30,721) 
Reef Mining Limited  (770,250) (69,833) 
Kibo Nickel Limited  (3,738) (2,701) 
Eagle Gold Mining Limited  (513,466) (106,046) 
Mzuri Energy Limited  (12,320) (153,857) 
Rukwa Holdings Limited  519 (3,600) 
Rukwa Development Limited  158,938 (14,813) 
Rukwa Mining Company Limited  144,824 (3,222) 
Rukwa Coal Limited  (492 468) (514,149) 
Mzuri Power Limited  (1,830) (2,110) 
Mbeya Power Tanzania Limited  - - 
Kibo Mining South Africa Limited  7,785 2,625 
Kibo Exploration (Tanzania) Limited  (631,724) 254,078 
Kibo MXS Limited*  (3,925) (3,239) 
Tourlou Limited*  (22,856) (3,384) 
Mzuri Exploration Services Limited*  (333,707) (406,881) 

 

* The profit and loss pertaining to newly acquired subsidiary undertakings has been included from the date of 
acquisition so as to prevent distortion of pre-acquisition profit and loss. 
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Group – 2014 Financial Period  Net Asset 

Value/ (Net 
Liability 

Value)  
(£) 

Profit/(loss) 
for the 

period (£) 

Sloane Developments Limited  (507) (666) 
Kibo Mining (Cyprus) Limited  (23,295,535) (24,870,353) 
Kibo Gold Limited  143,221 (1,249) 
Jubilee Resources Limited  (992,132) (176,204) 
Savannah Mining Limited  (661,078) (114,969) 
Reef Mining Limited*  (666,352) (204,753) 
Kibo Nickel Limited  (1,057) (306,953) 
Eagle Gold Mining Limited  (385,692) (127,113) 
Mzuri Energy Limited  151,533 (240,158) 
Rukwa Holdings Limited  3,105 (363,031) 
Rukwa Development Limited  170,678 12,971 
Rukwa Mining Company Limited  155,545 (1,411) 
Rukwa Coal Limited  35,950 (134,538) 
Mzuri Power Limited  (900) (11,488) 
Mbeya Power Tanzania Limited  - - 
Kibo Uranium Limited  (993) (5,774) 
Pinewood Resources Limited  (380,530) (124,663) 
Makambako Resources Limited  (30,962) (1,127) 
Kibo Mining South Africa Limited  8,289 1,132 
Kibo Exploration (Tanzania) Limited  (852,946) 212,934 

 
* The profit and loss pertaining to newly acquired subsidiary undertakings has been included from the date of 
acquisition so as to prevent distortion of pre-acquisition profit and loss. 
 
21. Related party transactions  
 
Related parties of the Group comprise subsidiaries, joint ventures, significant shareholders, the Board of Directors 
and related parties in terms of the listing requirements. 
 
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on 
consolidation. 
 
Board of Directors/ Key Management 

Name Relationship (Directors of:) 
Louis Coetzee Mzuri Capital Group 
Andreas Lianos River Group, Boudica Group, Mzuri Capital Group, Tsitato Trading Limited, Gattonside 

Trading Limited and Namaqua Management Limited 
Louis Scheepers Mzuri Capital Group 

 
Other entities over which directors/key management or their close family have control or significant 
influence: 

River Group 
 
 
Boudica Group 
 
Mzuri Capital Group 
 

River Group provide corporate advisory services and is the Company’s 
Designated Advisor. 
 
Boudica Group provides secretarial services to the Group. 
 
Exploration of prospecting properties within Tanzania  

Tsitato Trading Limited/ Namaqua 
Management Limited/ Gattonside Trading 
Limited 

Management and administrative services 
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Family/close associates of controllers/trustees/directors/key managers: 
 

Sun Mining Limited A proprietary Director of Sun Mining Limited is also a director of various 
Tanzanian subsidiaries in a fiduciary capacity. 

 
Kibo Mining Plc is a shareholder the following companies and as such are considered related parties: 
 
  Directly held subsidiaries:     Sloane Developments Limited 

   Kibo Mining (Cyprus) Limited  
 

Indirectly held subsidiaries: Kibo Gold Limited 
 Kibo Mining South Africa Limited  
 Savannah Mining Limited 
 Reef Mining Limited 
 Kibo Nickel Limited 
 Eagle Gold Mining Limited 
 Mzuri Energy Limited 
 Rukwa Holdings Limited 
 Rukwa Development Limited 
 Rukwa Mining Company Limited 
 Rukwa Coal Limited 
 Mzuri Power Limited 
 Kibo Exploration (Tanzania) Limited 
 Mbeya Power Tanzania Limited 
 Kibo MXS Limited 
 Mzuri Exploration Services Limited 
 Tourlou Limited 
 
Joint Ventures: 

Kibo Uranium Limited 

 Pinewood Resources Limited 
 Makambako Resources Limited 
 Jubilee Resources Limited 

Kibo Jubilee (Cyprus) Limited 
  

The only transactions during the period between the Company and its subsidiaries were management.  The loans to/ 
from group companies do not have fixed repayment terms and are unsecured. The following transactions have been 
entered into with related entities, by way of common directorship, throughout the financial period 
 
River Group was paid £41,892 (2014: £30,000) for designated advisor services during the year settled through cash. 
No fees are payable to River Group as at year end. The expenditure was recognised in the Company as part of 
administrative expenditure.  
 
During the year, Namaqua Management Limited, or nominated advisors of Namaqua Management Limited was paid 
€705,678 (2014: €585,600) for the provision of  administrative and management services. No amount was payable 
at the year-end (2014: Nil). 
 
The Boudica Group was paid €36,000 (2014: €36,000) in cash for corporate services during the current financial 
period. No fees are payable to Boudica Group at year end. 
 
Kibo MXS Limited and Mzuri Exploration Services Limited were acquired from the Mzuri Capital Group for cash 
consideration equal to £450. Refer to Note 12 for further detail. 
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Group – 2014 Financial Period  Net Asset 

Value/ (Net 
Liability 

Value)  
(£) 

Profit/(loss) 
for the 

period (£) 

Sloane Developments Limited  (507) (666) 
Kibo Mining (Cyprus) Limited  (23,295,535) (24,870,353) 
Kibo Gold Limited  143,221 (1,249) 
Jubilee Resources Limited  (992,132) (176,204) 
Savannah Mining Limited  (661,078) (114,969) 
Reef Mining Limited*  (666,352) (204,753) 
Kibo Nickel Limited  (1,057) (306,953) 
Eagle Gold Mining Limited  (385,692) (127,113) 
Mzuri Energy Limited  151,533 (240,158) 
Rukwa Holdings Limited  3,105 (363,031) 
Rukwa Development Limited  170,678 12,971 
Rukwa Mining Company Limited  155,545 (1,411) 
Rukwa Coal Limited  35,950 (134,538) 
Mzuri Power Limited  (900) (11,488) 
Mbeya Power Tanzania Limited  - - 
Kibo Uranium Limited  (993) (5,774) 
Pinewood Resources Limited  (380,530) (124,663) 
Makambako Resources Limited  (30,962) (1,127) 
Kibo Mining South Africa Limited  8,289 1,132 
Kibo Exploration (Tanzania) Limited  (852,946) 212,934 

 
* The profit and loss pertaining to newly acquired subsidiary undertakings has been included from the date of 
acquisition so as to prevent distortion of pre-acquisition profit and loss. 
 
21. Related party transactions  
 
Related parties of the Group comprise subsidiaries, joint ventures, significant shareholders, the Board of Directors 
and related parties in terms of the listing requirements. 
 
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on 
consolidation. 
 
Board of Directors/ Key Management 

Name Relationship (Directors of:) 
Louis Coetzee Mzuri Capital Group 
Andreas Lianos River Group, Boudica Group, Mzuri Capital Group, Tsitato Trading Limited, Gattonside 

Trading Limited and Namaqua Management Limited 
Louis Scheepers Mzuri Capital Group 

 
Other entities over which directors/key management or their close family have control or significant 
influence: 

River Group 
 
 
Boudica Group 
 
Mzuri Capital Group 
 

River Group provide corporate advisory services and is the Company’s 
Designated Advisor. 
 
Boudica Group provides secretarial services to the Group. 
 
Exploration of prospecting properties within Tanzania  

Tsitato Trading Limited/ Namaqua 
Management Limited/ Gattonside Trading 
Limited 

Management and administrative services 
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22. Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management 
 
The Group and Company’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of 
these financial instruments is to provide finance for the Group and Company’s operations. The Group has various 
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its 
operations.  
 
It is, and has been throughout the 2015 and 2014 financial period, the Group and Company’s policy not to undertake 
trading in derivatives.  
 
The main risks arising from the Group and Company’s financial instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, 
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and capital risk. Management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these 
risks which are summarised below. 

 
 

 
Foreign currency risk 
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies and exposures to exchange rate 
fluctuations therefore arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed by continuously reviewing exchange rate 
movements in the relevant foreign currencies. The exposure to exchange rate fluctuations is limited as the Company’s 
subsidiaries operate mainly with Sterling, Euros, South African Rand, US Dollar and Tanzanian Shillings.  
 
At the period ended 31 December 2015, the Group had no outstanding forward exchange contracts.  

 2015 (£) 2014 (£) 

Financial instruments of the Group are: 
Loans and 

receivables 
Financial 
liabilities 

Loans and 
receivables 

Financial 
liabilities 

     
Financial assets at amortised cost     
Trade and other receivables 550,692 - 11,557 - 
Cash and cash equivalents 189,435 - 186,447 - 
     
Financial liabilities at amortised cost     
Trade payables   - 306,797 - 240,106 
Borrowings - 500,000 - - 
 740,127 806,797 198,004 240,106 

 2015 (£) 2014 (£) 

Financial instruments of the Company are: 
Loans and 

receivables 
Financial 
liabilities 

Loans and 
receivables 

Financial 
liabilities 

     
Financial assets at amortised cost     
Trade and other receivables – non current 27,712,269 - 26,047,465 - 
Trade and other receivables – current 523,104 - 659 - 
Cash and cash equivalents 3,382 - 79,575 - 
     
Financial liabilities at amortised cost     
Trade payables - current - 166,892 - 53,668 
Borrowings - 500,000 - - 
 28,238,755 666,892 26,127,699 53,668 
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It is, and has been throughout the 2015 and 2014 financial period, the Group and Company’s policy not to undertake 
trading in derivatives.  
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The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies and exposures to exchange rate 
fluctuations therefore arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed by continuously reviewing exchange rate 
movements in the relevant foreign currencies. The exposure to exchange rate fluctuations is limited as the Company’s 
subsidiaries operate mainly with Sterling, Euros, South African Rand, US Dollar and Tanzanian Shillings.  
 
At the period ended 31 December 2015, the Group had no outstanding forward exchange contracts.  

 2015 (£) 2014 (£) 

Financial instruments of the Group are: 
Loans and 

receivables 
Financial 
liabilities 

Loans and 
receivables 

Financial 
liabilities 

     
Financial assets at amortised cost     
Trade and other receivables 550,692 - 11,557 - 
Cash and cash equivalents 189,435 - 186,447 - 
     
Financial liabilities at amortised cost     
Trade payables   - 306,797 - 240,106 
Borrowings - 500,000 - - 
 740,127 806,797 198,004 240,106 

 2015 (£) 2014 (£) 

Financial instruments of the Company are: 
Loans and 

receivables 
Financial 
liabilities 

Loans and 
receivables 

Financial 
liabilities 

     
Financial assets at amortised cost     
Trade and other receivables – non current 27,712,269 - 26,047,465 - 
Trade and other receivables – current 523,104 - 659 - 
Cash and cash equivalents 3,382 - 79,575 - 
     
Financial liabilities at amortised cost     
Trade payables - current - 166,892 - 53,668 
Borrowings - 500,000 - - 
 28,238,755 666,892 26,127,699 53,668 
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Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign subsidiaries undertakings were: 
 
  2015 2014 
ZAR to GBP (Spot) 0.0438 0.0554 
ZAR to GBP (Average) 0.0515 0.0560 
USD to GBP (Spot) 0.6745 0.6437 
USD to GBP (Average) 0.6541 0.6072 
EURO to GBP (Spot) 0.7374 0.7824 
EURO to GBP (Average) 0.7263 0.8062 
CAD to GBP (Spot) 0.4864 0.0553 
CAD to GBP (Average) 0.5126 0.5497 
 
The executive management of the Group monitor the Group's exposure to the concentration of fair value estimation 
risk on a monthly basis. 
 
Group Sensitivity Analysis: 
 
If the GBP:EURO/ EURO:USD exchange rate was to increase/decrease by 10%, the effect on foreign currency 
translation would be £2.5 million (2014: £2.3 million) and £0.61 million (2014: £0.46 million)  respectively. 
 
Credit risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 
to the Group. As the Group does not, as yet, have any sales to third parties, this risk is limited. 
 
The Group and Company’s financial assets comprise receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The credit risk on 
cash and cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by 
international credit rating agencies. The Group and Company’s exposure to credit risk arise from default of its 
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents in its consolidated 
statement of financial position.  
 
The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any Group of 
counterparties having similar characteristics. The Group defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if 
they are connected or related entities. 
 
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at period end were as follows: 

 
Financial instruments            Group (£)          Company (£) 
 2015 2014 2015 2014 
     
Trade & other receivables  550,692 11,557 28,235,373  26,048,124 
Cash & cash equivalents  189,435 186,447 3,383 79,575 
 
Liquidity risk management 
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate 
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group and Company’s short, medium and long-term 
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves 
and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets 
and liabilities. Cash forecasts are regularly produced to identify the liquidity requirements of the Group.  
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The Group and Company’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 2015 were all payable on demand, other than the 
trade payables to other Group undertakings. 

Group (£)  
Less than 1 

year 
Greater than 1 

year 
At 31 December 2015   
Trade and other payables 306,797 - 
Borrowings 500,000 - 
   
At 30 December 2014   
Trade and other payables 240,106 - 
   
Company (£)   
At 31 December 2015   
Trade and other payables 166,892 - 
Borrowings 500,000 - 
   
At 30 December 2014   
Trade and other payables 53,668 - 
Interest rate risk 
The Group and Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group and 
Company’s holdings of cash and short term deposits. 
 
It is the Group and Company’s policy as part of its management of the budgetary process to place surplus funds on 
short term deposit in order to maximise interest earned.  
 
Group Sensitivity Analysis: 
 
Currently no significant impact exists due to possible interest rate changes on the Company’s interest bearing 
instruments. 
 
Capital risk management 
 
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while 
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. 
 
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To 
maintain or adjust its capital structure, the Group may adjust or issue new shares or raise debt. No changes were made 
in the objectives, policies or processes during the period ended 31 December 2015. The capital structure of the Group 
consists of equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained losses 
as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. 
 
Fair values  
The carrying amount of the Group and Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at amortised cost 
in the financial statements approximate their fair value. 
 
Hedging 
At 31 December 2015, the Group had no outstanding contracts designated as hedges. 
 
23. Events after the reporting period 
 
Exploration Activities 
Three new Prospecting Licences (“PLs”) were issued to the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary Rukwa Coal Limited. 
These newly issued PLs are contiguous with its existing PL block in southern Tanzania that contains the 109 million 
tonne Mbeya Coal Mineral Resource (the “Resource”). The Resource underpins the Company’s Mbeya Coal to Power 
Project (“MCPP”), currently in the final stages of a Bankable Feasibility Study (“BFS”).  The three new PLs, namely, PL 
10744/2015, PL 10742/2015 and 10743/2015 are located immediately north, south and east respectively of the 
Resource and consolidates the Company’s ground position on and peripheral to the MCPP development area.  
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The Group and Company’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 2015 were all payable on demand, other than the 
trade payables to other Group undertakings. 

Group (£)  
Less than 1 

year 
Greater than 1 

year 
At 31 December 2015   
Trade and other payables 306,797 - 
Borrowings 500,000 - 
   
At 30 December 2014   
Trade and other payables 240,106 - 
   
Company (£)   
At 31 December 2015   
Trade and other payables 166,892 - 
Borrowings 500,000 - 
   
At 30 December 2014   
Trade and other payables 53,668 - 
Interest rate risk 
The Group and Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group and 
Company’s holdings of cash and short term deposits. 
 
It is the Group and Company’s policy as part of its management of the budgetary process to place surplus funds on 
short term deposit in order to maximise interest earned.  
 
Group Sensitivity Analysis: 
 
Currently no significant impact exists due to possible interest rate changes on the Company’s interest bearing 
instruments. 
 
Capital risk management 
 
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while 
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. 
 
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To 
maintain or adjust its capital structure, the Group may adjust or issue new shares or raise debt. No changes were made 
in the objectives, policies or processes during the period ended 31 December 2015. The capital structure of the Group 
consists of equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained losses 
as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. 
 
Fair values  
The carrying amount of the Group and Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at amortised cost 
in the financial statements approximate their fair value. 
 
Hedging 
At 31 December 2015, the Group had no outstanding contracts designated as hedges. 
 
23. Events after the reporting period 
 
Exploration Activities 
Three new Prospecting Licences (“PLs”) were issued to the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary Rukwa Coal Limited. 
These newly issued PLs are contiguous with its existing PL block in southern Tanzania that contains the 109 million 
tonne Mbeya Coal Mineral Resource (the “Resource”). The Resource underpins the Company’s Mbeya Coal to Power 
Project (“MCPP”), currently in the final stages of a Bankable Feasibility Study (“BFS”).  The three new PLs, namely, PL 
10744/2015, PL 10742/2015 and 10743/2015 are located immediately north, south and east respectively of the 
Resource and consolidates the Company’s ground position on and peripheral to the MCPP development area.  
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Proceeds from Hume Capital 
On 25 January 2016, the Joint Special Administrators paid £522,800 of the total £526,000 (representing the 
consideration for 10,520,000 shares which were to be issued to third party investors) and that had previously been 
paid into Hume Capital’s client money account during the February 2015 placing, to Kibo (“Hume Proceeds”). The 
amount of £3,200 was deducted from the total and represents costs of the administration. 
 
Share issue 
The Company issued 9,000,000 Ordinary Shares of €0.015 each in the capital of the Company at a price of 4.7p to 
Sanderson Capital Partners Limited for a total value of £423,000 on 29 January 2016.   
 
Funding security 
The Company entered into a loan facility (the “Facility”) with Sanderson Capital Partners Limited (“Sanderson”) for 
an amount up to £1,500,000 to be utilised by Kibo, at its sole discretion and election, for contingency funding, during 
the term of the Facility. The Facility comprises the following key characteristics: 
 

 An unsecured, interest free, fixed term loan due for repayment no later than 31 August 2016; 
 The loan can be drawn down in five £300,000 tranches no less than 40 days apart, with tranches three, four 

and five subject to successfully achieving certain specified project deliverables; 
 A fee of up 7 million Ordinary Shares in Kibo, capped by a maximum value of £350,000 associated with the 

arrangement and implementation of the Facility, will become payable if the Facility is utilised (the 
“Arrangement Fee”); 

 The Arrangement Fee will be payable on the day the Facility is activated by Kibo; 
 In addition to the Arrangement Fee, a drawdown fee of £51,000 is payable to Sanderson in respect of each of 

the five £300,000 drawdown tranches; 
 Each drawdown fee will be payable in 1,186,046 Ordinary Shares in Kibo, subject to certain share price limits, 

on or before any particular drawdown date; 
 At the completion of the term of the loan, Kibo will have the option to settle the first £750,000 of the monies 

borrowed in either cash or Ordinary Shares in Kibo; 
 Should Kibo be unable to settle the second £750,000 of monies borrowed in cash it will have the option to 

settle this portion in Ordinary Shares in Kibo 
  
On the 3rd of March 2016 the Company had elected to activate the loan facility from Sanderson Capital Partners 
Limited. In accordance with the terms of the Facility the Company issued 8,186,046 Ordinary Shares of €0.015 par 
value each in the capital of the Company to Sanderson. The Sanderson Shares were issued upon receipt of £300,000 
from Sanderson, representing the first drawdown on the Loan Facility of up to £1,500,000 provided by Sanderson to 
the Company. The Sanderson Shares comprise 7,000,000 shares issued in respect of the arrangement fee for the 
facility and 1,186,046 shares issued in respect of the first drawdown on the loan. In addition, the Company also issued 
1,950,000 shares to Beaufort Securities Limited in payment of corporate advisory fees of £75,000 due in connection 
with the negotiation of the facility. 
 
On the 12th of April the Company allotted 1,360,000 Ordinary Shares of €0.015 par value each in the capital of the 
Company to Sanderson. The Sanderson Shares will be issued as a drawdown fee upon receipt of £300,000 from 
Sanderson, representing the second drawdown on the Facility of up to £1,500,000 provided by Sanderson to the 
Company. The Sanderson Shares comprise 1,186,046 shares to be issued in relation to the second drawdown and a 
further issue of 173,954 shares in relation to the first drawdown (announced on 3 March 2016). The mid-price for 
Kibo shares on 3 March 2016 of 3.75 pence per share was outside the 4 pence to 5 pence per share range in which the 
standard drawdown fee is fixed at 1,186,046 Ordinary Shares in Kibo. This gave rise to a shortfall in the shares issued 
to Sanderson in respect of the first drawdown fee of £51,000, which was calculated on an effective price of 4.3 pence 
per share 
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On the 20th of May the Company allotted 1,406,897 Ordinary Shares (the “Sanderson Shares”) of €0.015 par value 
each in the capital of the Company to Sanderson. The Sanderson Shares will be issued as a drawdown fee upon receipt 
of £300,000 from Sanderson, representing the third drawdown on the Facility of up to £1,500,000 provided by 
Sanderson to the Company. The Sanderson Shares comprise 1,186,046 shares to be issued in relation to the third 
drawdown and a further issue of 220,851 shares in relation to the second drawdown. The mid-price for Kibo shares 
on 12 April 2016 of 3.625 pence per share was outside the 4 pence to 5 pence per share range in which the standard 
drawdown fee is fixed at 1,186,046 Ordinary Shares in Kibo. This gave rise to a shortfall in the shares issued to 
Sanderson in respect of the second drawdown fee of £51,000, which was calculated on an effective price of 4.3 pence 
per share. 
 
On the 31st of May the Company issued 433,835 new ordinary shares of €0.015 par value each in the capital of the 
Company in settlement of services provided. 321,457 of the Settlement Shares were issued at 3.733 per share to RFC 
Ambrian for corporate advisory fees to the Company in the amount of £12,000. The remaining 112,378 were issued 
at 4.5p per share for project management services to a service provider in Tanzania in the amount of £5,057. 
 
Mbeya Coal to Power Project (MCPP): Restatement of the Mbeya Coal Resource Completed 
Increase in total Mineral Resource from 109.23 million tonnes (Mt) to 120.793 Mt representing a 10.42% increase 
over the previously disclosed Mineral Resource, and re-classification of  total  Coal  Resource  into  Measured  Resource  
of  20.904  Mt, Indicated Resource of 88.601 Mt and Inferred Resource of 11.28 Mt. 
 
24. Going concern 

 
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. 
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and 
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 
 
25. Commitments and Contingencies 

 
The Group does not have identifiable material contingencies or commitments as at the reporting date.  Any contingent 
rental is expensed in the period in which it is incurred. 
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On the 20th of May the Company allotted 1,406,897 Ordinary Shares (the “Sanderson Shares”) of €0.015 par value 
each in the capital of the Company to Sanderson. The Sanderson Shares will be issued as a drawdown fee upon receipt 
of £300,000 from Sanderson, representing the third drawdown on the Facility of up to £1,500,000 provided by 
Sanderson to the Company. The Sanderson Shares comprise 1,186,046 shares to be issued in relation to the third 
drawdown and a further issue of 220,851 shares in relation to the second drawdown. The mid-price for Kibo shares 
on 12 April 2016 of 3.625 pence per share was outside the 4 pence to 5 pence per share range in which the standard 
drawdown fee is fixed at 1,186,046 Ordinary Shares in Kibo. This gave rise to a shortfall in the shares issued to 
Sanderson in respect of the second drawdown fee of £51,000, which was calculated on an effective price of 4.3 pence 
per share. 
 
On the 31st of May the Company issued 433,835 new ordinary shares of €0.015 par value each in the capital of the 
Company in settlement of services provided. 321,457 of the Settlement Shares were issued at 3.733 per share to RFC 
Ambrian for corporate advisory fees to the Company in the amount of £12,000. The remaining 112,378 were issued 
at 4.5p per share for project management services to a service provider in Tanzania in the amount of £5,057. 
 
Mbeya Coal to Power Project (MCPP): Restatement of the Mbeya Coal Resource Completed 
Increase in total Mineral Resource from 109.23 million tonnes (Mt) to 120.793 Mt representing a 10.42% increase 
over the previously disclosed Mineral Resource, and re-classification of  total  Coal  Resource  into  Measured  Resource  
of  20.904  Mt, Indicated Resource of 88.601 Mt and Inferred Resource of 11.28 Mt. 
 
24. Going concern 

 
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. 
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and 
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 
 
25. Commitments and Contingencies 

 
The Group does not have identifiable material contingencies or commitments as at the reporting date.  Any contingent 
rental is expensed in the period in which it is incurred. 
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Accounting policy 
 
Headline earnings per share (HEPS) is calculated using the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 
during the period and is based on the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders, after excluding those items as 
required by Circular 2/2015 issued by the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA). 
 
Reconciliation of Headline earnings per share 

 
Headline loss per share 

Headline loss per share comprises the following: 

Reconciliation of headline loss per share:  31 December 
2015 (£) 

31 December 
2014 (£) 

Profit for the period attributable to normal shareholders  177,162 2,215,004 
Reversal of impairment of Intangible assets/ (Impairment of Intangible assets)  (3,182,240) (4,695,356) 
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries  5,762 - 
Bargain purchase from acquisition of Subsidiaries  (193,425) - 
Impairment of goodwill on acquisition of Subsidiaries  20,057 - 
Headline loss for the period attributable to normal shareholders  (3,172,687) (2,570,352) 
    
Headline loss per ordinary share  (0.010) (0.013) 
 
In order to accurately reflect the weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings, 
dilutive earnings and headline earnings per share as at year end, the weighted average number of ordinary shares was 
adjusted retrospectively. 
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Schedule of prospecting and exploration licenses 
 
The following detailed schedule is attached in order to provide additional information pertaining specifically to the interests 
held by the Company in the identifiable exploration projects as at year end: 
 
Rukwa Coal Limited 
 

OFFER REG. NO. OFFER DATE LICENCE NO. GRANTED DATE EXPIRY DATE

1 HQ-G16707 22-Feb-11 PL 7005/2011 21-Apr-11 20-Apr-15 IWANDA - CHUNYA/MBOZI 198.81    
2 HQ-G16803 22-Feb-11 PL 7006/2011 12-Apr-11 11-Apr-15 IWANDA - CHUNYA/MBOZI 296.81    
3 HQ-P20662 16-Oct-12 PL 8841/2013 08 February 2013 07 February 2017 IVUNA - MBOZI 49.44

4 HQ-P29182 16-Sep-15 PL 10742/2015 22 October 2015 Licence with Ministry UTAMBALILA - CHUNYA/MBOZI 132.31    

5 HQ-P29202 16-Sep-15 PL 10743/2015 22 October 2015 Licence with Ministry TABO - CHUNYA/MBOZI 99.64      

6 HQ-P29181 16-Sep-15 PL 10744/2015 22 October 2015 Licence with Ministry UTAMBALILA - MOMBA 17.06      

PROPERTIES UNDER LICENCES

OFFER DETAILS LICENCE DETAILS

LOCATION (AREA/DISTRICT) SQ.KMNO

 
 
Pinewood Resources Limited 
 

OFFER REG. NO. OFFER DATE LICENCE NO. GRANTED DATE EXPIRY DATE

1 HQ-P16193 15-Nov-11 PL 7721/2012 23-Feb-12 22-Feb-16 SONGWE RIVER - MBEYA/MBOZI 3.99
2 HQ-P20674 28-Sep-12 PL 8496/2012 10-Dec-12 09-Dec-16 SONGEA - MBINGA 10.07
3 HQ-P19757 10-Dec-12 PL 9100/2013 29-Apr-13 28-Apr-17 MATEPWENDE - SONGEA 297.98

4 HQ-P21470 22-Aug-13 PL 9477/2013 21-Nov-13 Licence with Ministry SAKAMAGANGA - SONGEA 75.76

5 HQ-P20099 04-Oct-13 PL 9486/2013 27-Nov-13 Licence with Ministry LUTUKILA & LUHIRA RIVER - SONGEA 189.03

PROPERTIES UNDER LICENCES

OFFER DETAILS LICENCE DETAILS

LOCATION (AREA/DISTRICT) SQ.KMNO

 
 
Eagle Gold Mining Limited 
 

OFFER REG. NO. OFFER DATE LICENCE NO. GRANTED DATE EXPIRY DATE
1 HQ-G18018 13-Jan-15 PL 5457/2008 18-Dec-14 17-Dec-16 BUBU - KONDOA 20.03
2 HQ-G17800 10-Sep-13 PL 6595/2010 13-Aug-13 12-Aug-16 KWAMTORO - KONDOA 98.07
3 HQ-G17801 10-Sep-13 PL 6600/2010 13-Aug-13 12-Aug-16 KWAMTORO - KONDOA 66.84
4 HQ-G17888 02-Dec-14 PL6612/2010 05-Oct-13 04-Oct-16 MEIA MEIA - DODOMA 93.78

5 HQ-P16508 25-Jun-10 PL 7308/2013 8-Apr-2013 7-Apr-2017 KWAMTORO - DODOMA/KONDOA 290.15

6 HQ-P20253 06-Nov-12 PL 8836/2013 08-Feb-13 07-Feb-17 KWAMTORO - DODOMA/KONDOA 297.54

PROPERTIES UNDER LICENCES

OFFER DETAILS LICENCE DETAILS
LOCATION (AREA/DISTRICT) SQ.KMNO
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Schedule of prospecting and exploration licenses 
 
The following detailed schedule is attached in order to provide additional information pertaining specifically to the interests 
held by the Company in the identifiable exploration projects as at year end: 
 
Rukwa Coal Limited 
 

OFFER REG. NO. OFFER DATE LICENCE NO. GRANTED DATE EXPIRY DATE

1 HQ-G16707 22-Feb-11 PL 7005/2011 21-Apr-11 20-Apr-15 IWANDA - CHUNYA/MBOZI 198.81    
2 HQ-G16803 22-Feb-11 PL 7006/2011 12-Apr-11 11-Apr-15 IWANDA - CHUNYA/MBOZI 296.81    
3 HQ-P20662 16-Oct-12 PL 8841/2013 08 February 2013 07 February 2017 IVUNA - MBOZI 49.44

4 HQ-P29182 16-Sep-15 PL 10742/2015 22 October 2015 Licence with Ministry UTAMBALILA - CHUNYA/MBOZI 132.31    

5 HQ-P29202 16-Sep-15 PL 10743/2015 22 October 2015 Licence with Ministry TABO - CHUNYA/MBOZI 99.64      

6 HQ-P29181 16-Sep-15 PL 10744/2015 22 October 2015 Licence with Ministry UTAMBALILA - MOMBA 17.06      

PROPERTIES UNDER LICENCES

OFFER DETAILS LICENCE DETAILS

LOCATION (AREA/DISTRICT) SQ.KMNO

 
 
Pinewood Resources Limited 
 

OFFER REG. NO. OFFER DATE LICENCE NO. GRANTED DATE EXPIRY DATE

1 HQ-P16193 15-Nov-11 PL 7721/2012 23-Feb-12 22-Feb-16 SONGWE RIVER - MBEYA/MBOZI 3.99
2 HQ-P20674 28-Sep-12 PL 8496/2012 10-Dec-12 09-Dec-16 SONGEA - MBINGA 10.07
3 HQ-P19757 10-Dec-12 PL 9100/2013 29-Apr-13 28-Apr-17 MATEPWENDE - SONGEA 297.98

4 HQ-P21470 22-Aug-13 PL 9477/2013 21-Nov-13 Licence with Ministry SAKAMAGANGA - SONGEA 75.76

5 HQ-P20099 04-Oct-13 PL 9486/2013 27-Nov-13 Licence with Ministry LUTUKILA & LUHIRA RIVER - SONGEA 189.03

PROPERTIES UNDER LICENCES

OFFER DETAILS LICENCE DETAILS

LOCATION (AREA/DISTRICT) SQ.KMNO

 
 
Eagle Gold Mining Limited 
 

OFFER REG. NO. OFFER DATE LICENCE NO. GRANTED DATE EXPIRY DATE
1 HQ-G18018 13-Jan-15 PL 5457/2008 18-Dec-14 17-Dec-16 BUBU - KONDOA 20.03
2 HQ-G17800 10-Sep-13 PL 6595/2010 13-Aug-13 12-Aug-16 KWAMTORO - KONDOA 98.07
3 HQ-G17801 10-Sep-13 PL 6600/2010 13-Aug-13 12-Aug-16 KWAMTORO - KONDOA 66.84
4 HQ-G17888 02-Dec-14 PL6612/2010 05-Oct-13 04-Oct-16 MEIA MEIA - DODOMA 93.78

5 HQ-P16508 25-Jun-10 PL 7308/2013 8-Apr-2013 7-Apr-2017 KWAMTORO - DODOMA/KONDOA 290.15

6 HQ-P20253 06-Nov-12 PL 8836/2013 08-Feb-13 07-Feb-17 KWAMTORO - DODOMA/KONDOA 297.54

PROPERTIES UNDER LICENCES

OFFER DETAILS LICENCE DETAILS
LOCATION (AREA/DISTRICT) SQ.KMNO
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Savannah Mining Limited 
 

OFFER REG. NO. OFFER DATE LICENCE NO. GRANTED DATE EXPIRY DATE
1 HQ-G17999 23-Mar-15 OFFER 24-Jul-14 23-Jul-17 LUNGUYA - KAHAMA 19.91
2 HQ-G18017 13-Jan-15 PL 5509/2008 31-Dec-14 30-Dec-16 KIKUBIJI - KWIMBA 11.37
3 HQ-G17580 31-Dec-12 PL 6283/2009 31-Dec-12 30-Dec-15 KIKUBIJI - KWIMBA 19.90
4 HQ-G17628 14-May-13 PL 6321/2010 30-Mar-13 29-Mar-16 KIKUBIJI - KWIMBA 4.83
5 HQ-G17629 14-May-13 PL 6322/2010 30-Mar-13 29-Mar-16 KIKUBIJI - KWIMBA 11.51
6 HQ-P17621 23-Nov-10 PL 7100/2011 03-Aug-11 02-Aug-15 BUKONDO - GEITA 25.01
7 HQ-G18150 14-Aug-15 OFFER 25-Aug-15 24-Aug-18 MWAMAGALA - KAHAMA 3.72
8 HQ-P16872 28-Sep-11 PL 7589/2012 23-Jan-12 22-Jan-16 KIRUMWA-GEITA 50.15
9 HQ - 4606 03-Mar-08 PL 7590/2012 23-Jan-12 22-Jan-16 KWIMBA 26.43

10 HQ-P20614 04-Apr-12 PL 7991/2012 04-Jun-12 03-Jun-16 KIKULIJI - KWIMBA 9.95
11 HQ-P17729 22-Feb-12 PL 7994/2012 04-Jun-12 03-Jun-16 FUKALO - MAGU 15.35
12 HQ-P17024 04-Jun-12 PL 8109/2012 05-Jul-12 04-Jul-16 KITONGO - MAGU 8.39
13 HQ-P20919 25-Oct-12 PL 8806/2013 08-Feb-13 07-Feb-17 KITONGO - MISUNGWI 4.19
14 HQ-P21291 15-Nov-12 PL 8995/2013 08-Feb-13 07-Feb-17 KWIMBA - KWIMBA 8.53
15 HQ-P21290 04-Mar-13 PL 9196/2013 21-Jun-13 20-Jun-17 FUKALO - MISUNGWI 7.68
16 HQ-P20859 04-Mar-13 PL 9197/2013 21-Jun-13 20-Jun-17 IGENGI - MISUNGWI 12.29
17 HQ-P24733 24-Apr-13 PL 9311/2013 04-Oct-13 03-Oct-17 KIKULIJI - KWIMBA 9.95
18 HQ-P21289 08-Apr-13 PL 9312/2013 11-Sep-13 10-Sep-17 LUNGUYA - KAHAMA 8.95
19 HQ-P19713 22-Aug-13 PL 9478/2013 21-Nov-13 Licence at Ministry GEITA - GEITA 12.79

PROPERTIES UNDER LICENCES
OFFER DETAILS LICENCE DETAILS

LOCATION (AREA/DISTRICT) SQ.KMNO

 
Jubilee Resources Limited 
 

OFFER REG. NO. OFFER DATE LICENCE NO. GRANTED DATE EXPIRY DATE

1 HQ-G18110 15-Jul-15 OFFER 12-Jun-15 11-Jun-18 MATOMBO - MOROGORO 19.76
2 HQ-G18109 14-Aug-15 OFFER 12-Jun-15 11-Jun-18 MGETA - MOROGORO 19.93
3 HQ-G18108 15-Jun-15 PL 5837/2009 12-Jun-15 11-Jun-17 KINGOLWERA - MOROGORO 20.04
4 HQ-G17803 10-Sep-13 PL 6541/2010 13-Aug-13 12-Aug-16 KINGOLWERA - MOROGORO 19.02
5 HQ-G18032 28-Jan-15 OFFER 13-Feb-15 12-Feb-18 MATOMBO - MOROGORO 21.59
6 HQ-G17831 11-Sep-13 PL 6622/2010 21-Sep-13 20-Sep-16 SONGE - KILOSA 98.83
7 HQ-P19135 06-Aug-12 PL 8299/2012 28-Sep-12 27-Sep-16 MKATA/MOROGORO - KILOSA 119.69
8 HQ-P20388 28-Sep-12 PL 8497/2012 10-Dec-12 09-Dec-16 MOROGORO - MOROGORO 159.18
9 HQ-P20642 16-Oct-12 PL 8839/2013 08-Feb-13 07-Feb-17 MOROGORO - MOROGORO 39.67

10 HQ-P26016 15-May-13 PL 9203/2013 21-Jun-13 20-Jun-17 MATOMBO - MOROGORO 42.81

PROPERTIES UNDER LICENCES

OFFER DETAILS LICENCE DETAILS

LOCATION (AREA/DISTRICT) SQ.KMNO
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Reef Miners Limited 
 

O FFE R  R E G . 
N O . O FFE R  D A TE L IC E N C E  N O .

G R A N TE D  
D A TE E X P IR Y  D A TE

1 HQ-G17881 25-Oct-13 PL 4324/2007 19-Sep-13 18-Sep-15 NYAGHONA - GEITA/SENGEREMA 13.65
2 HQ-G1767 14-May-13 PL 4355/2007 09-May-13 08-May-15 NYAMIREMBE - BUKOMBE 15.17
3 HQ-G17880 13-Jun-14 PL 4652/2007 18-Sep-13 17-Sep-15 BIHARAMULO 8.33
4 HQ-G17891 25-Oct-13 PL 4732/2007 20-Sep-13 19-Sep-15 KASAMWA - SENGEREMA 10.12
6 HQ-G17890 25-Oct-13 PL 4794/2007 20-Oct-13 19-Oct-15 BUZIRAYOMBO - BIHARAMULO 18.21
7 HQ-G17932 25-Oct-13 PL 4822/2007 09-Nov-13 08-Nov-15 LYOBAHIKA - BUKOMBE 2.91
8 HQ-G17933 25-Oct-13 PL 4823/2007 07-Nov-13 06-Nov-15 MBOGWE - KAHAMA 6.52
9 HQ-G17988 04-Aug-14 PL 5253/2008 25-Jul-14 24-Jul-16 NYAKAGOMBA - BIHARAMULO/GEITA 6.69

15 HQ-G17586 14-Jan-13 PL 6282/2009 31-Dec-12 30-Dec-15 GEITA - GEITA 6.04
17 HQ-G17667 14-May-13 PL 6398/2010 05-May-13 04-May-16 IKOKA - BIHARAMULO 7.88
18 HQ-G17745 11-Sep-13 PL 6485/2010 16-Jul-13 15-Jul-16 BUSHIROMBO - BUKOMBE 13.13
20 HQ-G17886 PL 6835/2010 21-Oct-13 20-Oct-16 NYAKAGOMBA - GEITA 3.07
27 HQ-P17762 20-Jun-12 PL 8139/2012 07-Aug-12 06-Aug-16 MUKUNGO - BIHARAMULO 9.02
28 HQ-P19383 15-Aug-12 PL 8363/2012 14-Nov-12 13-Nov-16 BUZIRAYOMBO - BIHARAMULO 35.46
29 HQ-P19356 21-Aug-12 PL 8365/2012 13-Nov-12 12-Nov-16 IMWERU - GEITA 5.88
30 HQ-P19256 21-Aug-12 PL 8386/2012 16-Oct-12 15-Oct-16 USHIROMBO - BUKOMBE 13.05
31 HQ-P19444 21-Aug-12 PL 8390/2012 16-Oct-12 15-Oct-16 GEITA - GEITA 5.59
32 HQ-P17764 29-Aug-12 PL 8482/2012 10-Dec-12 09-Dec-16 ISAMBALA - BIHARAMULO 26.74
33 HQ-P19445 29-Aug-12 PL 8483/2012 10-Dec-12 09-Dec-16 KABAHE - GEITA 10.35
34 HQ-P19568 17-Sep-12 PL 8507/2012 12-Dec-12 11-Dec-16 UGAMBILO - KWIMBA 8.87
35 HQ-P21335 25-Oct-12 PL 8680/2012 24-Dec-12 23-Dec-16 ISAMBALA - BIHARAMULO 13.37
36 HQ-P21020 25-Oct-12 PL 8681/2012 24-Dec-12 23-Dec-16 NYAKAGOMBA - BIHARAMULO 12.88
37 HQ-P20745 25-Oct-12 PL 8682/2012 24-Dec-12 23-Dec-16 NGOBO - MISUNGWI 2.96
38 HQ-P20617 25-Oct-12 PL 8683/2012 24-Dec-12 23-Dec-16 LUGOBA - GEITA 2.91
39 HQ-P19038 25-Oct-12 PL 8686/2012 24-Dec-12 23-Dec-16 SIMA - KWIMBA/MISUNGWI 5.12
40 HQ-P19255 16-Nov-12 PL 8730/2012 31-Dec-12 30-Dec-16 USHIROMBO - KAHAMA 13.05
41 HQ-P21684 16-Nov-12 PL 8740/2012 31-Dec-12 30-Dec-16 NYAMIREMBE - BIHARAMULO 62.49
42 HQ-P18235 16-Nov-12 PL 8741/2012 31-Dec-12 30-Dec-16 NYAKAGOMBATONDO - GEITA 6.12
43 HQ-P21761 16-Nov-12 PL 8742/2012 31-Dec-12 30-Dec-16 KASAMWA - GEITA 7.40
44 HQ-P21050 13-Dec-12 PL 9011/2013 27-Mar-13 26-Mar-17 NIKONGA - BUKOMBE 2.99
45 HQ-P21167 24-Dec-12 PL 9028/2013 27-Mar-13 26-Mar-17 BUKOLI - GEITA 3.91
46 HQ-P21336 04-Mar-13 PL 9073/2013 27-Mar-13 26-Mar-17 MUKUNGO - BIHARAMULO 4.51
47 HQ-P20595 24-Apr-13 PL 9179/2013 10-Jun-13 With Ministry IMWERU - GEITA 3.02
48 HQ-P22471 24-Apr-13 PL 9180/2013 13-Jun-13 12-Jun-17 BUZIRAYOMBO - BIHARAMULO 8.41
49 HQ-P22359 24-Apr-13 PL 9181/2013 13-Jun-13 12-Jun-17 NG'OBO - MISUNGWI 1.49
50 HQ-P21842 24-Apr-13 PL 9183/2013 13-Jun-13 12-Jun-17 GEITA - GEITA 3.38
51 HQ-P22360 24-Apr-13 PL 9185/2013 13-Jun-13 12-Jun-17 SIMA - KWIMBA/MISUNGWI 2.56
52 HQ-P21721 24-Apr-13 PL 9192/2013 01-Jul-13 30-Jun-17 NYAMILEMBE/BIHARAMULO - GEITA 15.16
53 HQ-P22031 08-Apr-13 PL 9200/2013 21-Jun-13 20-Jun-17 GEITA - GEITA 0.78
54 HQ-P19765 22-Aug-13 PL 9475/2013 21-Nov-13 With Ministry IMWERU - BIHARAMULO 7.23
55 HQ-P21049 22-Aug-13 PL 9476/2013 21-Nov-13 With Ministry USHIROMBO - BUKOMBE 6.57
56 HQ-P21409 04-Oct-13 PL 9493/2013 27-Nov-13 26-Nov-17 NYAKAGOMBA - BIHARAMULO 12.80
57 HQ-P22470 04-Oct-13 PL 9494/2013 27-Nov-13 With Ministry NYANGHONA - GEITA 17.06
58 HQ-P22664 04-Oct-13 PL 9495/2013 27-Nov-13 With Ministry USHIROMBO - BIHARAMULO 18.21
59 HQ-P20596 24-Sep-13 PL 9496/2013 27-Nov-13 With Ministry IMWERU - BIHARAMULO 12.56
60 HQ-P22773 12-Dec-13 PL 9642/2014 27-Mar-14 26-Mar-18 BUHALAHALA - GEITA 5.97
61 HQ-P21431 20-Feb-14 PL 9688/2014 24-Apr-14 23-Apr-18 EMIN PASHA - GEITA 3.20
62 HQ-P18834 18-Feb-14 PL 9689/2014 24-Apr-14 With Ministry GEITA 1.56

P R O P E R TIE S  U N D E R  L IC E N C E S
O FFE R  D E TA ILS L IC E N C E  D E TA ILS

LO C A TIO N  (A R E A /D IS TR IC T) S Q .K MN O
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NOTICE OF 
ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company will be held at 10 a.m on 
Thursday 21st July 2016 at the Conrad Hotel, Earlsfort 
Terrace, St Stephen’s Green, Dublin 2, Ireland for the 
purpose of considering, and if thought fit, passing the 
following resolutions of which resolutions numbered 1, 
2, 3, 4, 5 & 6 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions 
and resolutions numbered 7, 8, 9, 10 & 11 will be 
proposed as special resolutions: -

Ordinary Business
1 	 To receive, consider and adopt the accounts for the 

year ended 31 December 2015 together with the 
Directors and Auditors Reports thereon.

2 	 To authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration 
of the Auditors.

3 	 To re-elect Mr Christian Schaffalitzky as a Director of 
the Company who retires by rotation in accordance 
with Regulation 84 of the Articles of Association of 
the Company.

4 	 To re-elect Mr Noel O’Keeffe as a Director of the 
Company who retires by rotation in accordance 
with Regulation 84 of the Articles of Association of 
the Company.

Special business
Ordinary Resolution

5	 That the authorised share capital of the Company 
be and is hereby increased from €39,000,000 
divided into 800,000,000 Ordinary Shares of €0.015 
and 3,000,000,000 Deferred Shares of €0.009 each 

to €42,000,000 by the creation of 200,000,000 new 
ordinary shares of €0.015 each ranking equally in 
all respects with the existing issued and unissued 
Ordinary Shares of €0.015 each.

Ordinary Resolution
6	 The Directors be and are hereby generally and 

unconditionally authorised pursuant to Section 
1021 of the Companies Act 2014 (“2014 Act”), in 
substitution for all existing such authorities, to 
exercise all powers of the Company to allot relevant 
securities (within the meaning of Section 1021 of 
the 2014 Act) provided that such power shall be 
limited to the allotment of relevant securities up 
to a maximum aggregate nominal value equal to 
the nominal value of the authorised but unissued 
ordinary share capital of the Company from time to 
time. The authority hereby conferred shall expire 
on the date of the next annual general meeting of 
the Company held after the date of passing of this 
resolution, unless previously revoked, renewed or 
varied by the Company in General Meeting, save 
that the Company may before such expiry date 
make an offer or agreement which would or might 
require relevant securities to be allotted after such 
authority has expired and the Directors may allot 
relevant securities in pursuance of such offer or 
agreement as if the authority hereby conferred had 
not expired. 

Special Resolution
7 	 Subject to the passing of Resolution 6 above that 

the Directors be and are hereby empowered 
pursuant to Section 1023 of the Companies Act 
2014 (“2014 Act”), in substitution for all existing 

Company number 451931
KibO Mining Public limited company (“the Company”)
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Reef Miners Limited 
 

O FFE R  R E G . 
N O . O FFE R  D A TE L IC E N C E  N O .

G R A N TE D  
D A TE E X P IR Y  D A TE

1 HQ-G17881 25-Oct-13 PL 4324/2007 19-Sep-13 18-Sep-15 NYAGHONA - GEITA/SENGEREMA 13.65
2 HQ-G1767 14-May-13 PL 4355/2007 09-May-13 08-May-15 NYAMIREMBE - BUKOMBE 15.17
3 HQ-G17880 13-Jun-14 PL 4652/2007 18-Sep-13 17-Sep-15 BIHARAMULO 8.33
4 HQ-G17891 25-Oct-13 PL 4732/2007 20-Sep-13 19-Sep-15 KASAMWA - SENGEREMA 10.12
6 HQ-G17890 25-Oct-13 PL 4794/2007 20-Oct-13 19-Oct-15 BUZIRAYOMBO - BIHARAMULO 18.21
7 HQ-G17932 25-Oct-13 PL 4822/2007 09-Nov-13 08-Nov-15 LYOBAHIKA - BUKOMBE 2.91
8 HQ-G17933 25-Oct-13 PL 4823/2007 07-Nov-13 06-Nov-15 MBOGWE - KAHAMA 6.52
9 HQ-G17988 04-Aug-14 PL 5253/2008 25-Jul-14 24-Jul-16 NYAKAGOMBA - BIHARAMULO/GEITA 6.69

15 HQ-G17586 14-Jan-13 PL 6282/2009 31-Dec-12 30-Dec-15 GEITA - GEITA 6.04
17 HQ-G17667 14-May-13 PL 6398/2010 05-May-13 04-May-16 IKOKA - BIHARAMULO 7.88
18 HQ-G17745 11-Sep-13 PL 6485/2010 16-Jul-13 15-Jul-16 BUSHIROMBO - BUKOMBE 13.13
20 HQ-G17886 PL 6835/2010 21-Oct-13 20-Oct-16 NYAKAGOMBA - GEITA 3.07
27 HQ-P17762 20-Jun-12 PL 8139/2012 07-Aug-12 06-Aug-16 MUKUNGO - BIHARAMULO 9.02
28 HQ-P19383 15-Aug-12 PL 8363/2012 14-Nov-12 13-Nov-16 BUZIRAYOMBO - BIHARAMULO 35.46
29 HQ-P19356 21-Aug-12 PL 8365/2012 13-Nov-12 12-Nov-16 IMWERU - GEITA 5.88
30 HQ-P19256 21-Aug-12 PL 8386/2012 16-Oct-12 15-Oct-16 USHIROMBO - BUKOMBE 13.05
31 HQ-P19444 21-Aug-12 PL 8390/2012 16-Oct-12 15-Oct-16 GEITA - GEITA 5.59
32 HQ-P17764 29-Aug-12 PL 8482/2012 10-Dec-12 09-Dec-16 ISAMBALA - BIHARAMULO 26.74
33 HQ-P19445 29-Aug-12 PL 8483/2012 10-Dec-12 09-Dec-16 KABAHE - GEITA 10.35
34 HQ-P19568 17-Sep-12 PL 8507/2012 12-Dec-12 11-Dec-16 UGAMBILO - KWIMBA 8.87
35 HQ-P21335 25-Oct-12 PL 8680/2012 24-Dec-12 23-Dec-16 ISAMBALA - BIHARAMULO 13.37
36 HQ-P21020 25-Oct-12 PL 8681/2012 24-Dec-12 23-Dec-16 NYAKAGOMBA - BIHARAMULO 12.88
37 HQ-P20745 25-Oct-12 PL 8682/2012 24-Dec-12 23-Dec-16 NGOBO - MISUNGWI 2.96
38 HQ-P20617 25-Oct-12 PL 8683/2012 24-Dec-12 23-Dec-16 LUGOBA - GEITA 2.91
39 HQ-P19038 25-Oct-12 PL 8686/2012 24-Dec-12 23-Dec-16 SIMA - KWIMBA/MISUNGWI 5.12
40 HQ-P19255 16-Nov-12 PL 8730/2012 31-Dec-12 30-Dec-16 USHIROMBO - KAHAMA 13.05
41 HQ-P21684 16-Nov-12 PL 8740/2012 31-Dec-12 30-Dec-16 NYAMIREMBE - BIHARAMULO 62.49
42 HQ-P18235 16-Nov-12 PL 8741/2012 31-Dec-12 30-Dec-16 NYAKAGOMBATONDO - GEITA 6.12
43 HQ-P21761 16-Nov-12 PL 8742/2012 31-Dec-12 30-Dec-16 KASAMWA - GEITA 7.40
44 HQ-P21050 13-Dec-12 PL 9011/2013 27-Mar-13 26-Mar-17 NIKONGA - BUKOMBE 2.99
45 HQ-P21167 24-Dec-12 PL 9028/2013 27-Mar-13 26-Mar-17 BUKOLI - GEITA 3.91
46 HQ-P21336 04-Mar-13 PL 9073/2013 27-Mar-13 26-Mar-17 MUKUNGO - BIHARAMULO 4.51
47 HQ-P20595 24-Apr-13 PL 9179/2013 10-Jun-13 With Ministry IMWERU - GEITA 3.02
48 HQ-P22471 24-Apr-13 PL 9180/2013 13-Jun-13 12-Jun-17 BUZIRAYOMBO - BIHARAMULO 8.41
49 HQ-P22359 24-Apr-13 PL 9181/2013 13-Jun-13 12-Jun-17 NG'OBO - MISUNGWI 1.49
50 HQ-P21842 24-Apr-13 PL 9183/2013 13-Jun-13 12-Jun-17 GEITA - GEITA 3.38
51 HQ-P22360 24-Apr-13 PL 9185/2013 13-Jun-13 12-Jun-17 SIMA - KWIMBA/MISUNGWI 2.56
52 HQ-P21721 24-Apr-13 PL 9192/2013 01-Jul-13 30-Jun-17 NYAMILEMBE/BIHARAMULO - GEITA 15.16
53 HQ-P22031 08-Apr-13 PL 9200/2013 21-Jun-13 20-Jun-17 GEITA - GEITA 0.78
54 HQ-P19765 22-Aug-13 PL 9475/2013 21-Nov-13 With Ministry IMWERU - BIHARAMULO 7.23
55 HQ-P21049 22-Aug-13 PL 9476/2013 21-Nov-13 With Ministry USHIROMBO - BUKOMBE 6.57
56 HQ-P21409 04-Oct-13 PL 9493/2013 27-Nov-13 26-Nov-17 NYAKAGOMBA - BIHARAMULO 12.80
57 HQ-P22470 04-Oct-13 PL 9494/2013 27-Nov-13 With Ministry NYANGHONA - GEITA 17.06
58 HQ-P22664 04-Oct-13 PL 9495/2013 27-Nov-13 With Ministry USHIROMBO - BIHARAMULO 18.21
59 HQ-P20596 24-Sep-13 PL 9496/2013 27-Nov-13 With Ministry IMWERU - BIHARAMULO 12.56
60 HQ-P22773 12-Dec-13 PL 9642/2014 27-Mar-14 26-Mar-18 BUHALAHALA - GEITA 5.97
61 HQ-P21431 20-Feb-14 PL 9688/2014 24-Apr-14 23-Apr-18 EMIN PASHA - GEITA 3.20
62 HQ-P18834 18-Feb-14 PL 9689/2014 24-Apr-14 With Ministry GEITA 1.56

P R O P E R TIE S  U N D E R  L IC E N C E S
O FFE R  D E TA ILS L IC E N C E  D E TA ILS

LO C A TIO N  (A R E A /D IS TR IC T) S Q .K MN O

 
 



such authorities, to allot equity securities (within 
the meaning of Section 1023 of the 2014 Act) 
for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by 
resolution number 6 above as if Section 1022(1)  of 
the 2014 Act, did not apply to any such allotment 
provided that this power shall be limited to the 
allotment of equity securities (including, without 
limitation, any shares purchased by the Company 
pursuant to the provisions of the 2014 Act and held 
as treasury shares) up to a maximum aggregate 
nominal value equal to the nominal value of the 
authorised but unissued ordinary share capital 
of the Company from time to time. The authority 
hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion of 
the next annual general meeting of the Company 
held after the date of passing of this resolution, 
save that the Company may before such expiry, 
make an offer or agreement which would or might 
require relevant securities to be allotted after such 
authority has expired and the Directors may allot 
relevant securities in pursuance of such offer or 
agreement notwithstanding that the power hereby 
conferred had not expired. The authority hereby 
conferred may be renewed, revoked or varied by 
special resolution of the Company.

Special Resolution

8	 That, subject to the passing of Resolution 5, existing 
clause 4 of the memorandum of association of the 
Company be deleted and replaced as follows: 

“The share capital of the company is €42,000,000 
divided into 1,000,000,000 Ordinary Shares of €0.015 
each and 3,000,000,000 Deferred Shares of €0.009 
each.”

Special Resolution

9	 That, subject to the passing of Resolution 5, the 
articles of association of the Company be and are 
hereby amended by the deletion of article 4 (a), 
and for the avoidance of doubt not clause 4 (b), 4 
(c) 4 (d) or 4(e), and by the insertion of the following 
clause in substitution for and to the exclusion 
thereof:

“The share capital of the company is €42,000,000 
divided into 1,000,000,000 Ordinary Shares of €0.015 
each (hereinafter called “the Ordinary Shares”) 
and 3,000,000,000 Deferred Shares of €0.009 each 
(hereinafter called “the Deferred Shares”)”.

Special Resolution 

10	That the memorandum of association of the 
Company be amended as follows:

(a)	the reference to “Section 155 of the Companies Act, 
1963” in Clause 2(K) be deleted and replaced with 
the reference to “the Companies Act 2014” and the 
reference therein to “said Section” be deleted and 
replaced with the reference to “the Companies Act 
2014”.

(b)	the reference to “Section 155 of the Companies 
Act, 1963” in Clause 2(T) be deleted and replaced 
with the reference to “the Companies Act 2014”; 
and

(c)	the words “registered for the purposes of Part 17 of 
the Companies Act, 2014” be inserted at the end of 
Clause 3.

Special Resolution

11	That the Articles of Association produced to the 
meeting (a copy of which regulations marked “X” 
for identification), be adopted in substitution for, 
and to the exclusion of, the existing Articles of 
Association of the Company.

	
By Order of the Board 

Noel O’Keeffe
Director and Company Secretary 	

Dated:  13 June   2016
							     
		
Registered Office: 
27 Hatch Street Lower
Dublin 2
Ireland
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Notes: 

a	 Any shareholder of the Company entitled to attend 
and vote may appoint another person (whether a 
member or not) as his/her proxy to attend, speak 
and vote on his/her behalf.  For this purpose a form 
of proxy is enclosed with this Notice.  A proxy need 
not be a shareholder of the Company.  Lodgement of 
the form of proxy will not prevent the shareholder 
from attending and voting at the meeting. 

b	 Only shareholders, proxies and authorised 
representatives of corporations, which are 
shareholders, are entitled to attend the meeting. 

c	 To be valid, the form of proxy and, if relevant, the 
power of attorney under which it is signed, or 
a certified copy of that power of attorney, must 
be received by the Company’s share registrar, 
Computershare Investor Services (Ireland) Ltd, 
Heron House, Corrig Road, Sandyford Industrial 
Estate Dublin 18 not less than 48 hours prior to the 
time appointed for the meeting. 

d	 All South African shareholders must send their 
proxies to the transfer secretaries, Computershare 
Investor Services (Pty) Ltd, 70 Marshall Street, 
Johannesburg 2001 (PO Box 61051 Marshalltown 
2107) not less than 48 hours prior to the time 
appointed for the meeting.

e	 In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior 
holder who tenders a vote, whether in person or by 
proxy, will be accepted to the exclusion of the votes 
of the other joint holder(s) and for this purpose 
seniority will be determined by the order in which 
the names stand in the register of members of the 
Company in respect of the relevant joint holding.

f	 The Company, pursuant to Section 1095 of the 
Companies Act, 2014 and regulation 14 of the 
Companies Act, 1990 (Uncertificated Securities) 
Regulations 1996 (as amended) specifies that only 
those shareholders registered in the Register of 
Members of the Company (the “Register”) at the 
close of business on the day which is two days 
before the date of the Meeting, (or in the case of 
an adjournment at the close of business on the day 
which is two days prior to the adjourned Meeting), 
shall be entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting 
or any adjournment thereof in respect only of the 
number of shares registered in their name at that 
time. Changes to entries in the Register after that 
time will be disregarded in determining the rights 
of any person to attend and/or vote at the Meeting.
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Annual General Meeting
KIBO MINING PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY (the “Company”)

I/We (See Note A below) ______________________________________of ________________________________
_______ being a shareholder of the Company, hereby appoint (See Note B below): 
(a) the Chairman of the Meeting; or 
(b) _____________________________ of _______________________________________ as my/our proxy to vote 
for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday 21st  July 
2016 at  10 a.m. in the Conrad Hotel, Earlsfort Terrace, St Stephen’s Green, Dublin 2, Ireland and at any adjournment 
thereof. 
Please indicate with an ‘‘X’’ in the space below how you wish your votes to be cast in respect of each of the 
resolutions detailed in the notice convening the Meeting. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy will 
vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion.

Ordinary Business of the Meeting For Against

1 To receive, consider and adopt the accounts for the year ended 31 
December 2015 and the Directors and Auditors Reports thereon.

2 To authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration of the auditors.

3 To re-elect Mr Christian Schaffalitzky  as a Director.

4 To re-elect Mr Noel O’Keeffe as a Director.

Special Business of the Meeting

5. To increase the authorised share capital of the Company

6. That the Directors be and are hereby generally and unconditionally 
authorised to exercise all powers of the Company to allot relevant 
securities.

7. That the Directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant 
to Section 1023(3) of the Companies Act, 2014 to allot equity 
securities.

8. To amend the share capital clause of the memorandum of 
association.

 

9. To amend the share capital clause of the articles of association

10. To amend generally the memorandum of association

11. To adopt new articles of association

Dated this      _______      day of           _________        2016

Signature or other execution by the shareholder (See Note C, turn over): 

___________________________

Form of Proxy
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Notes: 	
(A) 	 A shareholder must insert his, her or its full name 

and registered address in type or block letters.  In 
the case of joint accounts, the names of all holders 
must be stated.

(B) 	 If you desire to appoint a proxy other than the 
Chairman of the Meeting, please insert his or 
her name and address in the space provided and 
delete the words “the Chairman of the Meeting 
or”.

(C) 	 The proxy form must:
(i) 	 in the case of an individual shareholder 

be signed by the shareholder or his or her 
attorney; and 

(ii) 	 in the case of a corporate shareholder be given 
either under its common seal or signed on its 
behalf by an attorney or by a duly authorized 
officer of the corporate shareholder.

(D) 	 In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior 
holder who tenders a vote whether in person or 
by proxy shall be accepted to the exclusion of 
the votes of the other joint holders and for this 
purpose seniority shall be determined by the 
order in which the names stand in the register of 
members of the Company in respect of the joint 
holding.

(E) 	 To be valid, the form of proxy and, if relevant, the 
power of attorney under which it is signed, or a 
certified copy of that power of attorney, must 
be received by the Company’s  share registrar, 
Computershare Investor Services (Ireland) Ltd,  
Heron House, Corrig Road, Sandyford Industrial 
Estate, Dublin 18 at not less than 48 hours prior to 
the time appointed for the meeting. 

(F) 	 All South African shareholders must send their 
proxies to the transfer secretaries, Computershare 
Investor Services (Pty) Ltd, 70 Marshall Street, 
Johannesburg 2001 (PO Box 61051 Marshalltown 
2107) not less than 48 hours prior to the time 
appointed for the meeting.

(G) 	 A proxy need not be a shareholder of the 
Company but must attend the Meeting in person 
to represent his/her appointer.

(H) 	 The return of a proxy form will not preclude any 
shareholder from attending and voting at the 
Meeting.

(I) 	 Pursuant  to Section 1095 of the Companies Act, 
2014 and regulation 14 of the Companies Act, 
1990 (Uncertificated Securities) Regulations 1996 
entitlement to attend and vote at the meeting and 
the number of votes which may be cast thereat 
will be determined by reference to the Register 
of Members of the Company at close of business 
on the day which is two days before the date of 
the meeting (or in the case of an adjournment 
as at close of business on the day which is two 
days before the date of the adjourned meeting).
Changes to entries on the Register of Members 
after that time shall be disregarded in determining 
the rights of any person to attend and vote at the 
meeting.
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SOUTH AFRICAN SHAREHOLDERS

Notes to the Form of Proxy
1.	 A KIBO shareholder may insert the name of a proxy 

or the names of two alternative proxies of the 
KIBO shareholder’s choice in the space/s provided, 
with or without deleting “the Chairperson of the 
General Meeting”, but any such deletion must be 
initialled by the KIBO shareholder concerned. The 
person whose name appears first on the form of 
proxy and who is present at the Annual General 
Meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to the 
exclusion of those whose names follow.

2.	 Please insert an “X” in the relevant spaces 
according to how you wish your votes to be cast. 
However, if you wish to cast your votes in respect 
of a lesser number of shares than you own in 
KIBO, insert the number of ordinary shares held 
in respect of which you desire to vote. Failure 
to comply with the above will be deemed to 
authorise the proxy to vote or to abstain from 
voting at the Annual General Meeting as he/she 
deems fit in respect of all the shareholder’s votes 
exercisable thereat. A KIBO shareholder or his/her 
proxy is not obliged to use all the votes exercisable 
by the KIBO shareholder or by his/her proxy, but 
the total of the votes cast and in respect whereof 
abstentions recorded may not exceed the total of 
the votes exercisable by the shareholder or by his/
her proxy.

3.	 The date must be filled in on this proxy form when 
it is signed.

4.	 The completion and lodging of this form of proxy 
will not preclude the relevant KIBO shareholder 
from attending the Annual General Meeting and 
speaking and voting in person thereat to the 
exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof. 
Where there are joint holders of shares, the vote 
of the senior joint holder who tenders a vote, as 
determined by the order in which the names stand 
in the register of members, will be accepted.

5.	 Documentary evidence establishing the authority 
of a person signing this form of proxy in a 
representative capacity must be attached to this 
form of proxy unless previously recorded by the 
transfer secretaries of KIBO or waived by the 
Chairperson of the Annual General Meeting of 
KIBO shareholders.

6.	 Any alterations or corrections made to this form of 
proxy must be initialled by the signatory/ies.

7.	 A minor must be assisted by his/her parent 
or guardian unless the relevant documents 
establishing his/her legal capacity are produced or 
have been registered by the transfer secretaries of 
KIBO.

8.	 Forms of proxy must be received by the transfer 
secretaries, Computershare Investor Services (Pty) 
Limited at 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001 
(P O Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107) by not later 
than 10 a.m. on the 19th July 2016.

9.	 The Chairperson of the Annual General Meeting 
may accept or reject any form of proxy, in his 
absolute discretion, which is completed other 
than in accordance with these notes.

10.	 If required, additional forms of proxy are available 
from the transfer secretaries of KIBO.

11.	 Dematerialised shareholders, other than by own 
name registration, must NOT complete this form 
of proxy and must provide their CSDP or broker of 
their voting instructions in terms of the custody 

To be completed and mailed to:
Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd
PO Box 61051
Marshalltown 2107
Johannesburg
OR
To be completed and hand delivered to:
Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited
Ground Floor
70 Marshall Street
JOHANNESBURG
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APPENDIX

Explanation of proposed amendments to the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association 

1. 	 Introduction 
	 The Companies Act 2014 of Ireland (“2014 Act”) 

became effective on 1 June 2015. Instead of 
providing, as the previous Irish Companies Acts 
had, for a model set of articles of association 
that apply unless otherwise provided for, the 
2014 Act includes optional statutory provisions 
that apply to regulate a company unless its 
articles of association provide otherwise. 

	 The purpose of Special Resolutions 10 and 11 
is to make amendments to the Memorandum 
of Association of the Company and to adopt 
revised Articles of Association for the Company 
to reflect the new statutory context and to 
ensure that the changes to Irish company 
law will not have an unintended effect on 
the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of 
Association by altering how the provisions in the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association are to 
be applied. 

	 As all of the changes described below are 
intended, so far as practicable, to preserve 
the status quo, it is therefore not considered 
necessary to vote separately on each 
amendment to the Memorandum and Articles 
of Association. 

2. 	 Special Resolution 10 
	 This special resolution is being proposed in order 

make amendments to Clauses 2(K), 2(T) and 
Clause 3 of the Memorandum of Association so 
as to update the statutory references in these 
Clauses in order to be consistent with the 2014 
Act. 

3. 	 Special Resolution 11
	 Under this special resolution, it is proposed to 

make the following amendments to the Articles 
of Association: 

 (a) 	 Articles 1, 5(a), 6(a), 41(v), 59(g)(iii), 67(e), 
74(h) and 76(b)(iv),  contain references to 
Sections in the previous Irish Companies Acts. 
This resolution will amend these statutory 
references in order to ensure that they refer to 
the corresponding provisions in the 2014 Act. 

(b) 	 The 2014 Act adopts a new approach with 
respect to the articles of association of all 
companies. Instead of making provision for an 
optional, model set of articles of association as 
was provided under Table A of the First Schedule 
to the Companies Act 1963 (“Table A”), the 2014 
Act now contains specific statutory provisions 
that apply to all companies unless the company’s 
articles of association specifically exclude them. 
As those provisions deal with matters that are 
already specified in the Company’s existing 
Articles of Association (which also disapply the 
model set of articles of association provided in 
Table A), it is proposed that a new provision will 
be included in the introduction to the revised 
Articles of Association to disapply those optional 
sections of the 2014 Act. As Table A is no longer 
relevant, its disapplication in the introduction to 
the Articles of Association is no longer necessary. 
A summary of the main provisions of the 2014 
Act which are being specifically excluded by the 
new introduction to the Articles of Association 
is set out below: 

(i) 	 Section 43(2) deals with use of a company’s 
seal. This section is being disapplied as 
provision for use of the Company’s seal is 
made in Article 105; 

(ii) 	 Sections 77 to 81 deal with the making 
of calls in respect of unpaid amounts due 
on shares issued by a company. These 
sections are being disapplied as the 
matter is already provided for in Articles 
13 to 18; 

(iii) 	 Section 95(1)(a) is being disapplied as the 
Directors discretion to decline a transfer 
of shares is dealt with in Article 29; 

(iv) 	 Section 95(2)(a) is being disapplied as 
otherwise it would allow the directors to 
charge a fee when registering the transfer 
of a share (Article 31);

(v) 	 Sections 96(2) to (11) deal with the 
transmission of shares in a company. 
These sections are being disapplied as the 
matter is already provided for in Articles 
35 to 37; 

(vi) 	 Sections 124 and 125 deal with the 
declaration and payment of dividends 
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by a company. These sections are being 
disapplied as the relevant subject matter 
is already provided for in Articles 106 to 
116; 

(vii) Sections 144(3) and 144(4) deal with the 
appointment of directors of a company. 
These sections are being disapplied as the 
matter is already provided for in Articles 
85 to 87; 

(viii) 	 Section 148(2) deals with how the office 
of a director of a company may be vacated 
early. This section is being disapplied 
as the matter is already provided for in 
Articles 74 and 88; 

(ix) 	 Section 158(3) deals with the borrowing 
powers of the directors of a company. 
This section is being disapplied as the 
matter is already provided for in Article 
81; 

(x) 	 Section 158(4) deals with the delegation 
power by directors to committees. This 
section is being disapplied as the matter 
is already provided for in Article 97; 

(xi) 	 Sections 159 to 165 deal with the 
appointment of a managing director, 
the establishment of board committees, 
matters relating to board procedure and 
the appointment of alternate directors. 
These sections are being disapplied as 
these matters are already provided for in 
Articles 68 to 80 and 83 to 101; 

(xii) 	 Sections 181(1) deals with the notice period 
required to convene a general meeting of a 
company. This section is being disapplied as 
the matter is already provided for in Articles 
43 and 46; 

(xiii) 	 Sections 182(2) and (5) deal with the 
quorum required for a general meeting 
of a company. These sections are being 
disapplied as the matter is already 
provided for in Article 47; 

(xiv) Section 187 deals with the conduct of 
general meetings of a company. This 
section is being disapplied as the matter 
is already provided for in Articles 47 to 65; 

(xv) 	 Section 188 deals with voting at general 
meetings of a company. This section is 
being disapplied as the matter is already 
provided for in Articles 47 to 65;

(xvi) 	 Sections 218(3), (4) and (5) deal with 
the service of notice on members of 
a company. These sections are being 
disapplied as detailed provision in this 
regard is made in respect of the Company 
by Article 123 to 128; 

(xvii) 	 Sections 229, 230 and 1113 deal with 
the interests of directors of a company. 
These sections are being disapplied as the 
matter is already provided for in Article 
76; 

(xviii) 	Sections 338(5) and 338(6) deal with the 
delivery of the financial statements of 
the company. These sections are being 
disapplied as delivery methods are 
already dealt with in Articles 43, 119, 121 
and 124; 

(xix) 	 Section 618(1)(b) deals with the 
distribution of property on a winding 
up of a company. This section is being 
disapplied as the matter is already 
provided for in Article 129; 

(xx) 	 Section 1090 deals with the rotation of 
directors of a company. This section is 
being disapplied as the matter is already 
provided for in Articles 84 to 86; and 

(xxi) 	 Section 1092 deals with the remuneration 
of the Directors of a Company. This 
section is being disapplied as the matter 
is already provided for in Articles 71 to 73 
and 92.  

(c) 	 In various places in the Articles of Association, 
references to “stock exchange nominee” are 
being deleted as this term is no longer in 
use following the repeal of the Companies 
(Amendment) Act 1977.  

(d) 	 In various places in the Articles of Association, 
the expression “undenominated capital” is 
being inserted as this expression is now used in 
the 2014 Act to refer to that part of a company’s 
issued share capital that is not represented by 
the nominal value paid up on issued shares. 
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(e) 	 In various places in the Articles of Association, 
the expression “statutory financial statements” 
is being inserted as this expression is now used 
in the 2014 Act and replaces the term “accounts” 
– the new expression includes a balance sheet, 
a profit and loss account and other statements 
and notes. 

(f) 	 Articles 43, 119 and 121 are being amended in 
order to reflect the new requirements regarding 
the maintenance of accounting records set out in 
Chapter 2 of Part 6 of the 2014 Act. In particular, 
Article 43 has been amended to permit the 
Directors to use the power provided for in the 
2014 Act to send shareholders summary financial 
statements in lieu of the full statutory financial 
statements of the Company. Article 43 has been 
further amended to provide that, where the 
Directors elect to do so, any shareholder may 
request a full copy of the financial statements of 
the Company to be sent to him or her. 

(g) 	 Article 44 is being amended to make clear 
that the appointment or re-appointment of 
the Auditors at general meetings is subject to 
Sections 380 and 382 to 385 of the 2014 Act.

(h) 	 Article 46(b) is being amended to provide that 
the Secretary (together with any other person 
entitled to receive notice under the 2014 Act) is 
entitled to receive notice of general meetings as 
provided for by Section 180(1)(d) of the 2014 Act. 

(i) 	 Article 61 is being supplemented to make it clear 
that the Directors’ approval of the instrument of 
proxy is subject to the requirements of the 2014 Act. 

(j) 	 Article 64(a) is being amended to reflect the 
provisions of Section 183(10) of the 2014 Act, 
which allows notices of the revocation of a proxy 
to be delivered right up to the commencement 
of the relevant general meeting. 

(k) 	 Section 228(1)(d) of the 2014 Act is an entirely 
new restriction regarding the use of company 
property by directors. A new Article 72(b) is 
therefore being adopted in order to ensure that 
Directors can continue to use Company property, 
subject to such conditions as may be approved 
or delegated by the Board. 

(l) 	 Sections 228(1)(e) and 228(2) of the 2014 Act 

are entirely new. It is proposed therefore to 
include additional text in Article 76(a) (and to 
caveat Article 76(a)) in order to make it clear 
that Section 228(1)(e) will not restrict anything 
that may be done by any Director in accordance 
with the authorisation of the Board or a Board 
committee.  

(m) 	 The expression “accounting records” is being 
inserted in Articles 117 and 118 as this expression 
is now used in the 2014 Act. 

General Housekeeping Amendments
(n)	 A number of additional “housekeeping” changes 

are provided for in the revised Articles of 
Association, including:

(i)	 the deletion of the reference to Article 
“67” in Article 29 and its replacement by a 
reference to Article “59”;

(ii)	 the deletion of redundant text at the end 
of Article 40;

(iii)	 the deletion of the reference to 
Article “114” in Article 42(a)(ii) and its 
replacement by a reference to Article 
“115”.

(iv)	 the deletion of the reference to Article 
“41(a)” in Article 42(b) and its replacement 
by a reference to Article “42(a)”.

(v)	 the deletion of the reference to Article 
“52(b)” in Article 53 and its replacement 
by a reference to Article “53(b)”;

(vi)	 the deletion of the reference to Article 
“58(g)” in Article 59(a) and its replacement 
by a reference to Article “59(g)”;

(vii)	 the deletion of the reference to Article 
“58(g)(i) or 58(g)(ii)” in Article 59(a)(ii)
(2) and its replacement by a reference 
to Article “59(g)(i) or 59(g)(ii)” and the 
deletion of the reference to Article “58(h) 
in Article 59(a)(ii)(2) and its replacement 
by a reference to Article “59(h)”;

(viii)	 the deletion of the reference to Article 
“106” in Article 59(f) and its replacement 
by a reference to Article “111”;
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(ix)	 the deletion of the reference to Article 
“58(a)(ii)(2) in Article 59(h) and its 
replacement by a reference to Article 
“59(a)(ii)(2)”;

(x)	 the deletion of the reference to Article 
“122(a)(i) or 122(a)(ii) in Article 124(b) and 
its replacement by a reference to Article 
“124(a)(i) or 124(a)(ii)” and the deletion 
of the reference to Article “122(a)(iii) in 
Article 124(c) and its replacement by a 
reference to Article “124(a)(iii)”;

(xi)	 the deletion of the reference to Article 
“122(a)(iv) in Article 124(d) and its 
replacement by a reference to Article 
“124(a)(iv)”;

(xii)	 the deletion of the reference to Article 
“122(a)(i) and 122(a)(ii) in Article 124(f) 
and its replacement by a reference to 
Article “124(a)(i) or 124(a)(ii)”;  and

(xiii)	 the deletion of the reference to Article 
“58” in Article 126(a) and its replacement 
by reference to Article “59”.

Documents available for inspection 
A copy of the amended Memorandum of Association 
together with the Articles of Association, showing the 
changes proposed by Special Resolutions 10 and 11 
(and also including the changes proposed by Special 
Resolutions 8 and 9), is available on the Company’s 
website (www.kibomining.com) and will also be 
available for inspection at the registered office of the 
Company during business hours on any business day 
up to any including the date of the Annual General 
Meeting as well as being available at the Annual 
General Meeting on 21st July  2016. Members can also 
request a hard copy of the amended Memorandum of 
Association together with the Articles of Association 
by sending a written request for same marked for the 
attention of the Company Secretary, Kibo Mining plc, 
27 Hatch Street Lower, Dublin 2, Ireland or email to 
info@kibomining.com.
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NOTES: 



Highlights 2015 Target Programme 
for 2016/2017

Mbeya Coal to Power (MCPP) 
n	 Completion of Phase 1, Stage 2 (Mining Pre-Feasibility Study) of the mining component of the 

Integrated Bankable Feasibility Study (IBFS)

n	 Completion of Phase 2, Stage 1 (Feasibility Study) of the mining component of the IBFS

n	 Completion of a Financial Optimisation Study on the mining component of the MCPP

n	 Appointment of International power plant consultant, Tractebel Engineering to complete Phase 2, 
Stage 2 (Power Feasibility Study) on the power component of the IBFS 

n	 Negotiation of a Joint Development Agreement (“JDA”) with China based EPC contractor, SEPCO 
III, a major international power plant construction contractor

n	 Agreement on Memorandum of Understanding  between the Company and TANESCO (Tanzania 
state owned electricity supply company) laying out the mutually agreed principles within which a 
Power Purchase Agreement for the MCPP will be negotiated

Imweu Project (Gold)
n	 Completion of Phase 1, Stage 1 (Preliminary Economic Assessment) of the Definitive Mining 

Feasibility Study

n	 Commencement of Phase 1, Stage 2 (Pre-Feasibility Study) of the Definitive Mining Feasibility 
Study 

Haneti Project (Ni-Cu-PGM)
n	 Completion of independent geochemical interpretation report 

n	 Completion of Independent geophysical interpretation report based on recently flown government 
survey data

n	 Enhancement of the project by identification of extension to Ni-Cu-PGM prospective rock formation 
and improved resolution of existing drill targets from new interpretation reports 

Morogoro (Gold) and Pinewood (Uranium) projects
n	 Joint Ventures agreed which can see up to US$800,000 expenditure on each project over three 

years by JV partner to maintain a 50% interest.

n	 Re-commencement of exploration at Morogoro with laboratory submission of soil/pit sample 
batch in storage since 2012.

n	 Re-commencement of exploration at Pinewood with completion of updated independent report on 
Kibo’s uranium licence portfolio in Tanzania

MCPP
n	 Complete MCPP Integrated Bankable Feasibility Study by finalising Mining Feasibility Study, Power 

feasibility, Environmental Impact Assessment Study and all related activities and agreements with 
relevant stakeholders

n	 Bring project to Financial Close

n	 Commence Construction Phase of mine and power plant

Imweru
n	 Continue with completion of Pre-Feasibility Study stage of Definitive Mining Feasibility Study 

Haneti
n	 Implement drill programme at Haneti on priority targets at Mihanza and Mwaka Hills deferred from 

2015, resources permitting

Pinewood & Morogoro
n	 Continue with exploration under Joint Ventures (with Metal Tiger PLC) to resolve target areas for 

detailed follow-up and drill target generation
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